SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL
ADVISORY COUNCIL (SFRAC)
BOARD MEETING

AGENDA



ITEM 26-02 (TAB 1)



08-27-2025_SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL
ADVISORY COUNCIL BOARD MEETING

Minutes of the Board Meeting — Seven Flags
Regional Advisory Council (RAC)

Date: August 27, 2025

Time: 2:13 p.m.

Location: Laredo Medical Center, 1700 E Saunders, First Floor,
Community Center Room

Meeting Adjourned: 4:00 p.m.

Attendance Roll Call and Verification of Quorum

Presiding Chair: Chief Silvestre Rodriguez (Vice-Chairman)
Administrator: Mr. John Keiser

**Roll Call Conducted By: Mr. Keiser

Entities and Representatives Present:

e Angel Care Ambulance: Reynaldo Veliz (Director)

e Bronze Star Ambulance: Victor Romano (Director)

o City of Laredo Fire: Chief Silvestre Rodriguez (Officer: Vice-Chairman)
e Doctors Hospital of Laredo: Lily Limas (Alternate)

e Laredo Medical Center: Jose “Joe” Gonzalez (Officer: Treasurer)
e MedPoint Ambulance: Juan Medellin (Director)

o County Volunteer Fire/EMS: Chief Ramiro Elizondo, Jr. (Alternate)
o Victorious Care Ambulance: Victor Villarreal (Director)

e Laredo Lifeline: Peter Gonzalez (Director)

o Lalitas Ambulance: Ismael Flores (Director)

e Texas Superior Ambulance: Kimberly De La Cruz (Alternate)

o Skyline EMS: Gilbert Garza (Alternate)

¢ Villa Ambulance: Lorenzo Ochoa (Director)

¢ Primary Ambulance: Amanda Parra (Alternate)



e Dignicare: Manuel Aguilera (Alternate)
¢ United Med: Deborah Madrigal (Alternate)
e Gateway Ambulance: Present

Entities and Representatives Absent:

e Jason Delatre (Air Evac),
¢ John Jones (DSHS Regional Coordinator)
e Capital Care EMS

Guests:

Jim Schultz (TEEX, Texas A&M Engineering Extension Service)
Dr. Shum (Neurosurgeon, Laredo Medical Center)

Dr. Bruni (Orthopedic Surgeon, Laredo Medical Center)

EMTF District Coordinator, Nathan Rubio

Welcome and Opening Remarks

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Keiser at 2:13 p.m. He welcomed all attendees and
guests, noting the importance of the board meeting for reviewing ongoing projects, financials,
and committee reports. Mr. Keiser introduced the guests and invited Jim Schultz to share
information about TEEX's training programs for fire, police, public works, and other disciplines.

Mr. Schultz provided contact information for further inquiries.
Verification of Quorum

Mr. Keiser conducted roll call, confirming the presence of a quorum. Names and

apartment/entity numbers were recorded for all present members and alternates.

Item 25-42: Approval of Previous Minutes

The minutes from the previous meeting were previously made available for review before the

meeting and during the meeting.

Motion to approve: Made by Joe Gonzalez and seconded by Robert Gonzalez.

Vote: Unanimous approval.



ltem 25-43: Committee Reports

Neonatal NICU Committee

e **Chair:**Angelica Perez (present)
e **Vice Chair:**Lily Limas (present)
¢ No new items reported.

Stroke Committee

e **Chair:**Chantel Molina (Present)

e **Vice-Chair. Angie Avila (Absent)

o Update: GTAC approved a pediatric stroke algorithm as a recommendation for EMS
use. Will be distributed when available.

Cardiac/STEMI Committee

e **Chair:**Claudia Amaya (to be replaced by Claudia Amaya)
e **Vice Chair:**Rosie Tamez (Absent)
¢ No new items reported.

Trauma Injury Prevention Committee

e **Chair:**Leticia Colon (absent)

o **Vice Chair:**Joe Gonzalez (present)

o Report: "Stop the Bleed" first aid course held at Doctors Hospital with Laredo Fire, 38
children (ages 10-17) participated.

Maternal Committee

e **Chair:**Maria Santillan (Absent)
e **Vice Chair:**Stacey Lopez (Present)
¢ No new items reported.

EMS/ Pre-Hospital Committee

o **Chair:**Victor Villarreal (Present)
e **Vice Chair:**Angel Garcia (Absent)

e Update: Full-scale mass casualty incident drill scheduled for September 18th at the
airport, involving 51 simulated patients and multiple agencies. Coordination ongoing;
Pulsara system recommended for all agencies.

Motion to accept committee reports:
**Motion by:**Reynaldo Vélez
**Second by:**Peter Gonzalez
**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

Financial Reports

Item 25-44: Bank Fund Balance and Expense Report (April 11-August 8,
2025)

e "*EMS County:**Zero balance (all allocated funds spent)




EMS RAC:$175,007 (pending future allocations)
General Fund:$47,093

System Development:$2,789

**Holding Account:**No activity

Total Closing Balance:$225,190

Expense Details:
Allocation checks issued to various agencies; some checks pending clearance.
Fiscal year ends August 31; members reminded to deposit outstanding checks.

Motion to approve financial report:
**Motion by:**Robert Gonzalez
**Second by:**Joe Gonzalez
**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

Item 25-45: Third Quarter Fiscal Year EMS RAC System Development

Exceptional Item Financial Report

**Submitted to DSHS:**No activity for EMS RAC; system development allocations
detailed; corrective actions planned for next quarter.

Motion to approve:

**Motion by:**Joe Gonzales

**Second by:**Ramon Rojas

**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

Item 25-46: Self-Assessment and System Improvement Plan

**Phase One Self-Assessment: **26 measures reviewed; several areas scored below
state minimum (3). Corrective action plan submitted to DSHS.

**Summary:**5 zeros, 8 ones, 9 twos, 4 threes. Focus for next year: improve all scores
to minimum 3.

Motion to ratify submission:

**Motion by:**Joel Gonzalez

**Second by:**Robert Gonzalez

**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

Professional Services and Contract Renewals

Item 25-47: Health Access LLC

**Recommendation: **Continue services for Phase Two of RAC Self-Assessment
Program.
Contract:$6,000/month, September 1, 2025—-August 31, 2026 (not to exceed $72,000).

Motion to approve:
**Motion by:**Ramon Rojas



**Second by:**Ismael Flores
**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

ltem 25-48: South Texas Development Council

**Renewal:**Administrative and RAC management services, September 1, 2025—
August 31, 2026, not to exceed $31,759.

Motion to approve:

**Motion by:**Joe Gonzalez

**Second by:**Adrian Esparza

**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

Item 25-49: Officer Nominations

**Vice Chair Nominee: **Adrian Esparza (accepted)
**Secretary Nominee: **Reynaldo Veliz (accepted)
No other nominations; both accepted by acclamation.
Motion to approve:

**Motion by:**Joe Gonzalez

**Second by:**Peter Gonzélez

**Vote:**Unanimous approval.

Item 25-50: Member Removal

**Capital Care EMS: **Removed from board due to non-compliance and non-payment
of dues over two consecutive fiscal years.

Motion to approve removal:

**Motion by: **Joe Gonzalez

**Second by: **Lorenzo Ochoa

**Vote: **Unanimous approval.

Item 25-51: Bylaws Review

**First Reading: **Proposed revisions include 50% participation threshold for
assessment workshops and increase in hospital alternates from three to six.
**Second Reading:**Scheduled for next meeting.

Motion to accept first reading:

**Motion by:**Robert Gonzalez

**Second by:**Juan Medellin

**Vote:**Unanimous approval.




Item 25-52: DSHS/SFRAC Contract Ratification

e FY26 Contract with DSHS: $320,404 total, breakdown by program provided.
Motion to approve:
**Motion by: **Joe Gonzalez
**Second by: **Peter Gonzalez
**Vote: **Unanimous approval.

Item 25-53: Other Business

Membership Summary

e Most agencies in good standing; Capital Care removed.
Whole Blood Program

o Hospitals cannot participate independently; EMS entities must qualify.
Texas Wristband Program

e Mandatory for all EMS/hospital patients as of September 1, 2025. Agencies reminded to
order wristbands and document usage in EMR.

Communications & Training

¢ New radio systems distributed; cybersecurity training with TEEX upcoming; coalition-
sponsored tactical training completed.

Item 25-54: Correspondence

o Letters sent to LMC for stroke and trauma designation.

Item 25-55: General Announcements

o EMTF District Coordinator, Nathan Rubio provided regional deployment report.
¢ Chair thanked members for support; announced transition to new leadership.

Item 25-56: Next Meeting

**Date:**September 30, 2025
**Time:**2:00-4:00 p.m.
**Location:**Laredo Medical Center or Health Department (to be confirmed)

Item 25-57: Public Comments

No public comments received.



Item 25-58: Adjournment

Motion to adjourn:

**Motion by:**Joe Gonzalez
**Second by:**Robert Gonzalez
**Vote:**Unanimous approval
Meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m.



ITEM 26-03 (TAB 2)



J003.41q

wod-uIsyn@qamseba)in-ouaqoy +012-£25-956 HA [E21P3I [212UBN seba||IA ouaqoy “id
wodauIsyn@seuw| euel||i €11Z-£75-956 THA dopa.ig |eyeuosN sewi euel||n
wioD-oulIsyn ZojezZuo9) esi ‘_wmmcmE Zo|eZUor) * A\ es|
Isyn@zzajezuo9 esi TETT-£TS-956 THA wesB014 MOIN [EZUOS " A esI
1BU'syd@1zelp epied 16£8-157-956 W1 Jopaaa NDIN zeiq eplned
pnopI@eulyys Z110-902-956 W1 anN eulyyd A1qies *ia
BU'syo®zalededlabue 9/90-92£-956 JW1 WdN Za19( edijsbuy
JIVINT 3NOHd ANVdINOD 3L JNVN

0r08. X1 OQ3yV7
ININLYYHIa
HLTV3IH O0g3yvi

‘NOILVYOO1

. juasqy  juasald

(sy0.120a)
SYWITATTIT

‘NYIWNIVHO-3JIA

$202 ‘2 ¥IGWILdIS

:31vd ONILI3N

= Juasqy  :juasald

Ow)
Z3¥3d YOIT3ONY

‘NVIWMIVHD

J31ININOD NDIN / TVLVNO3N 9CA4




wod|lewb @1 Tad010da4Y

P66-99£-956

jusuwnuedaq
Sw3/aa4 Auno) eedez

JopaJg pieog

ebely piueq

SW3/a414

AobraAuncoqgam@iebuel | 00£S-£25-956 e JopauQ pleog [9buey op.edny

Wo2"00yeA@TPAWOPT | L0/L-87/-956 asuenquy Juiodpap Jopauig ulpaly ueng

18U'syddzejezuobasol | 60£Z-96/-956 Jajua) [edipapy opale :wumw%wwwhm Zs|ezuos) ,90[,, 9SOC
ueuwlilel

wodX1SW3Auoud@uiwpe | 8IES-152-956 Swa Ayond T h.muw_ opebjaq a6.of

W02 2UISYN@UO|03° eIsaa|

£61C-£¢S-956

opaJeT jo |endsoH siopoq

logpang pleog

uojo) eisna

wod ooyeA®quelR)sazuoiq

£99€-TT/-956

20IAIBS
soueNquuy Jeysazuolg

Jopaag pieog

[ BUIPB "W J01O3H

wodlewb@aduejnquealedpbue

¥8Y/-S2£-956

9JIAIRS
aouejnquiy aJed [ebuy

JopaJig pieoq

ZI|9/\ Op|euAy

wod ooyeA@saiadauljay)

£8£€-T5C-956

"2 ‘aulpyi opase

J0a.iq pieog

Zajezuon Ja3ad

VYN

ANOHd

ANVdJNOD

L

0908, X1 004V
ININLIYYCIa
HLTV3H O43¥v]

jasqy — juasald

(3¥vD 139NYVY)
VIONVD TAONV

‘NVIWNIVHI-3DIA

§20Z ‘vz ¥3AW31ld3s

:31va ONILIAN

juasqy -~ :ussald

(3¥vD2 SNORIOLIIA)
AVIRRAVTIIA HOLOIA

‘NYIWNIVHD

J31ININOD TV.LIdSOH-3¥dd / SN 9CAd




sn"q opaJe|'p@eziedsaie

€C09-18£-956

jusunuedag
2114 opaJe yo A

uewueyd
-DIA ‘190140 pleog

eziedsy ueupy

wod 0oyrA®Z08TS0ZeARISO[

TTTLT-SLL-956

adueNquy aJ4e) pajun

Jopaaiq pieog

S0ZeAR?D) 950

wod'jlewb@caledubip

ST/C-07¢-956

ale) wwbig

lopang pieog

seloy uowey

wod ocoyeA@aduenqueisewnd

06£5-79-956

aouenquy Alewild

Jopauiqg pieog

elled opueully

wod'lewb@®adueinquieeia | 9162-895-956 9JIAIBS DDURINQWIY BJJIA J0aa1q pieog eoYDQ ‘Y 0ZUJ0T
woo"lewb@swosulANs | 7Zz/-789-956 SW3 SuliAYS 10p241q pJeog S|LIeH UIASY
30IAIBS

wodyoopno@queloladnsx

08£€£-895-956

souejnquiy Jouadng sexa)

JopaJig pJeoq

ejoipJens auaq|D

J8uddURINqUIRIRISAUO| D Zaunlewb

Z€90-8P€-956

INI
‘IAIBS dURNqUIY JE3SaU0T

Jopauag pJeog

ZaunJep ‘v 0AEsSno

wod"yoopno@queseyielsl | 66vb-915-956 ale) adueinquy seye Jopauiq pleog $9.0]4 [9RWS]

. CRIINE S
WOoO'|Ieunoy®J9SquIea edsnoLoPIA | 8/TT-895-956 T Jopauiq pleog |ea.e|liA JOPIA
Vw3 3NOHd ANVdINOD L JNVN




J3)U3) [edIPS)Y OpaJe

Jopaug
|e2ipaly [eusdlei

aneAl] 9b10a9 Qg

. _ SIIIAISS
Pusydo@aqun - erel | T10SH-96/£-956 13jua) [edlpaj opadle $,UBWOM JOP3] aqun ellep
PBUSYI@O|UNWePIRT | 9TSH-96/-956 Jajua) [edIpay opale Jojeutp1o0o) [ediuiD ojjuN|y eRe

BUsYo@ueljpues elew | 9bTH-96£-956 13U [eIP3IA Opadlen

Jabeuely
weibold jeusaiep

uejjyues euely

opaJe Jo jeudsoH s10300Q

Jo0pa.0
|e2ipaly [eusSlei

OAjejuoly ueng "iq

wodsuIsyn@dsousauspadniepens | £/22-£25-956 opaJeT Jo jendsoy sio0Qg

lopaag

soJaus) 'd adnjepeno

wodauisyn@zado Aaoels | 7/22-£75-956 opaJeT jo |eudsoH s10300Q

Jabeuely
weibold jeusaie

zado Asoels

Tivwa INOHd ANVAINOD L INVYN
P NQ.k ” USSqQY  uasald
opaJseq Quawriedaq
(s¥o.1o50a)
31eeH opaleT Z3dO7 AFoVIS
‘NOLLVOO1 NVINMIVHO-IDIA
uasqy . -juasaid
$20Z ‘P2 ¥IIWILdIS o
;31 ONILIIW NETIEINSPIE TS
'NVINMIVHD

331ININOD TVNJUILVIN 9CAd




60¢£¢

1BUSYdID TZopueusdy ewy -96/-956 121ua) |e2IPaIN OpaJeT] Jensibay ewnes) ZopueulaH ew|y
LTTY
19U'SYI®eUIIS TBSSIUBA -96/-956 133U3) [EJIPS|A OpaJe] 10JRUIPIO0)) Bwnes ) BUJIDS BSSURA
TIVA3 INOHd ANVJINOD L JWVN
(14174
‘X[ OpaJeT Ay 48p3) J,
e T SZ0Z ¥z 4oquaydas
tRIE3H opaIeT :31va ONILIIW
‘NOILVD01
TTuasqy T Julsald 0 esqy T jussald TTTjuasqy T qussald T juasqy T :jussald
Oowr (s¥0.1000)
Z3TVZNOS J0r NOT02 VIOIL3T
{(S¥0.1004a) ¥o.L123dIa {(OW1) ¥yoLo3uIa ‘NVINRIVHO-3DIA ‘NVINYIVHO
AVIId3N VINNYHL AVIIA3N VNNV L

J31ININOD NOILNIAT™Hd ANNCNI / VINNVYL 9CAA




WO0D*2UISYN@UO|0d’BISI)

££66-£25 (956) 1120
£6T2-£25-956 DO

opale]
10 |endsoH si00Q

J10jeuipioo) ewnel]

NY ‘NSg ‘uojoD eisiia

0v9b-+€€ (956) 119D
6922-£2S-956 MWO

opaie
40 |endsoH sio010Q

10JeuIpI00) M0IIS

NY ‘ejiay aibuy

Wwod*duIsyn®zawe] ‘esoy

9pbe-12£ (956) 119D
8€/7-€75-956 U0

opaise]
JO |e)dsoH s10100(Q

10JeuIpoo) uled 1s3Y)

NY ‘NSg ‘zaule] a1soy

1PUsyodzapueula) eyuenf

9bL-96£-956 WO

19]u3) |edIP3I OpaJeT

J0jeu|ploo) [ediulD NI

NY ‘NSg ‘zapueusaq eyuen(

19U°SYd®zapueusay 0)sauId

TLTH-96£-956 22HO

19)U3) |eJIP3|N OpaseT

d023.1g a3

NY ‘NSW ‘zapueuiay 03saul]

19U°SYI®OUIU eSS0

CT6€-96/£-956 WO

19U |edIpa|y Opase

Jojeuiploo) ([eauld a3

NY ‘NSg ‘OuIN essuoD

19U'SYdD)|eale||IA_esSauURA

C16€-96/£-956 0O

191U3) |eJIP3N OpaseT

Jojeuipioo) e a3

NY ‘NSg ‘Zajezuos) essauep

12U°SYd@RUI3S BSSIUBA

LTTH-96£-956 O

19)U3) |eJIP3N OpaseT

Jojeulploo) ewnedj

NY ‘NSg ‘eusas essauep

BU'syd@eulow|a3ueyd

£L0C0-TEC-TOE II®D
81C€-96/-956 20

121U3) (eJIP3 OpaseT

10jeuIplioo) Hons

NY ‘dNQ ‘euljoly '3 j33ueyd

PUsyd®zaed eunsud

LLT€-96/£-956 WO

191U |eJIP3 OpaJeT

10jeuIploo) uied 13y

NY ‘NSg ‘zaed eunsud

TIVING INOHd ANVdNOD 3711 JINVN
1) 41;:°74 -_— _
‘X[ opase] 9Ny 1epa) Jjuasqy Jjuasald
009Z uswpedaq
y3/eap opaseT (s¥o120a) ZIWV.L IISOY
‘NOLLY201 ‘NYIWHIVHO-3JIA
T uasqy uasald
§Z0Z ‘¥Z 19quiaidas
(OW1) Zavd YNLLSTYD
31vad ONILAIN
‘NVYINIIVHO

J31ININOD INTILS / DVIAQANVI 9CAd




09£8-902 (956) 112D opa.eT \
9617-£25-956 WO | 40 lewdsoH siopoq #obeuew @3 - B et
VW3 3INOHd ANVAINOO I INVN




wodduisyn@seuljes edjabuy

0b9-pEE (956) 119D
6922-€75-956 2O

opaJet
J0 jeyidsoH siopoQ

10JeuIpJo0) ayons

NY ‘ejiay a1buy

Wwod"uIsyndzawe] 'esoy

9tbe-1£4 (956) 112D
8€/7-€75-956 WO

opale]
JO [e3dsoH sJopog

10JeUIpI00] Uied 1S3YD

NY ‘NSg ‘zawe] a1s0y

18Usyddzapueula) epuen(

9b/H-96.-956 U0

B
|edIpsiy opalen

10jeulpioo) [eauld NII

NY ‘NSg ‘zapueutaq eyuent

18U'SYdDZapurulay 0ISaUID

TLTH-96£-956 3240

Jaua)
|edIpajy Opa.eT

d0303.1g Q3

NY ‘NS ‘ZapueusaH 03sau13

19U°SYIBoUIL eSS0

216£-96/4-956 WO

Jaua)
|ed1pajy opase’]

40jeulpioo) [eauld a3

NY ‘NSg ‘OuIN essuoD

19U°SYO@)|eaL4B|IA_BSSBURA

CT6€-96/-956 @240

Jua)
|e2ipay opaser

JojeUIpIO0) |EIUID 43

NY ‘NSg ‘Zajezuon) essauep

19U'SUDIDRUIDS BSSIURA

LTTH-96/-956 VWO

J2u)
|edipaly opaseT

JojeulpJoo) ewnedj

NY ‘NSg ‘eulas essauep

PUsYI®zaed eulISLD

LLT€-96/-956 VWO

Jaua)
|edipajy opaJe

10jeuIpio0) uled 1S3y

NY ‘NSg ‘zaed eunsu)

. — L0Z0-TET-19€ 119D 1aua) ] \ A
JBu'sydDeuljow|zueyd 8176-96/-956 MO [e2Ip3I OpaIE] Jojeuipioo) a40AaS NY ‘dNQ ‘euljoiy “3 [93ueyd
B[\ E! INOHdJ ANVdNOD JILIL JNVN
(14174 T Juesqy juasald
‘X[ OpaJeT “any Jepa)
0092 usuwiyiedaqg (syoLo0a)
y3/eaH opasey VIIAY ITONV
:NOILVO01 INVIWNIVHO-3OIA
uasqy — jussald
6202 ‘vZ ¥3IGWI1dIS (OW1)
'3V ONLLITW YNITOW FTTILNVHD
INVIWMIVHO

J31ININOD IMO™LS 9CAd




Wo22uIsyn®zanbupoy-esoy

09£8-907 (956) 113D
9612-£75-956 YO

opaJle
Jo |eudsoH sJ1o10Q

19beuel a3

NY ‘zanbupoy esoy

W02 2UISYN®Uo|j0) eISR

££66-£26 (956) 119D
€612-£75-956 2O

opale
40 |endsoy s10300Q

iojeulploo) ewnel)

NY ‘NSg ‘uojo) eisian

TIVINS

INOHd

ANVdWNOD

L

JNVN




ITEM 26-04 (TAB 3)



85°061°52Z$ ST'68LC EEQ
é 0s’ 1Z'£58°S €6'€6E'LY E 00'SLT'STS
é 0S’ r9LY'TT 9Z'8Sv'6Y EE

——

S

S

TEETY'8SS

W

o

05

ST0Z/TT/6 NIY1 S20Z/8/8

S20Z/8/8 N4Y1 STOZ/TT/L

R72

S202Z/0T/L N1yl SZoe/T1/9

SZ/0T/9 Nyl SZ0Z/11/S

W

S02/01/S NIy SZOZ/TT/Y

00°'T20'9t SZ0Z/0T/¥ NIyl SZoT/T1/€

0s’ 00°'TZ09Y S202/0T/€ NIyl SZ0Z/T1/T

0s 15°SLT

YL SETV9 0S'000'V

|_oozestss)
v8'0Zr'19$ 5! E S202/01/T NY1 SZ0Z/TT/T
1567 E! E S20Z/0T/1 MUl $20Z/1T/2T
15°'SLT E! E ¥T02Z/0T/TT NY} 20Z/TT/1T
00'88T'TT 1582 E! g ¥20Z/0T/1T N4yl 20Z/T1/0T
E! E §20Z/0T/0T Nyl ¥20Z/11/6

aJuejeg
Suisop)
(weiBoid 8 aJuejeg pun4

l!g a1euas “a'1) Suiso|) pun4 aduejeg duejeg [I aouelsissy
ouejeg uiso|) jJudwdojanag Suiso|) Suisop) Auno)
3uno2dy 3ulp|oH wa1sAg pun4 [ejauan | pund Jvy SIN3 SW3 8uipu3 pouad

~ HPS B
72 R% 3N K72 RV 3N RVl
II

$
YO ETY'TLS
| vrens]
TN
| S006w S|

00'88T‘TT

R723

M~
R Y23

II

LE8TS'L

TT°L9€'ST TresL Y

9¥'920'v8

9%'920°6S€

v8°0vv’18€S v€0LT'TI 00'Cc8'18 00'LT¥'T6S
S

wr

¥20¢/01/6 N1yl $20Z/T1/8

W

140d3Y IDNVIVE ONIAGNI ANV SLINNOIIV ANNd WYHOO0Ud INVE IVHIS STAL

140d3Yd INJNILVLS SINNOJIV STAS
TIONNOJ AYOSIAQY TVNOIDIY SOVTd NIAIS



AUGUST-SEPTEMBER 2025



EMS COUNTY ASSISTANCE



6721 McPhetton Road

Community %' s enmes
Lasedo, TX 78045
(356) 7228318

% ﬂi’ e
Bank

NOTKCE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Communily Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 9/10/25 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591594
1216 SANTA MARIA Enclosures

LAREDO TX 78040

Ems (5w A‘{’ﬁ/(*fwc“‘g

CHECKING ACCOUNT

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number 1010591594 statement Dates 8/11/25 thru 9/10/25
Previous Balance | .00 Days in the statement period 31
Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger .00
Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected .00
Service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
Ccurrent Balance .00
DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Date Balance
8/11 .00
Main Bank Number: (956) 722-8333 TCB iTalk (24/7): 1-844-842-7211

NetTeller online Banking: Visit us online at www.tx-communitybank.com
Mobile Banking: Get the TX Community Bank app for your Android or i0S device






Compaegy fEiTE
|§s| 722.830

I Texas Community Bank Home

KOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR BUPORTANT BIFORMATION

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 9/10/25 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591495
EMS RAC ACCOUNT Enclosures 14

1216 SANTA_MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 14

Account Number 1010591495 Statement Dates 8/11/25 thru 9/10/25

Previous Balance 175,007.00 Days in the statement period 31

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 58,695.22

14 checks/pDebits 163,007.00 Average ColTected 58,695.22
Service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
Current Balance 12,000.00

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER
Date Check No Amount Date check No

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION

Balance Balance

175,007.00 : 38,862.50
143,713.25 : 22,431.25
8/15 122,850.75 8/22 49,293. 8/29 12,000.00




MEMBER FDIC

Te :
Commumty o o emaaey oo

Latedo, TX 78045
(356) 722-8333

NOTICE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR WMPORTANY INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

Date 9/10/25 Page 2
Primary Account 1010591495
Enclosures 14
TCB COURTESY CHECKING 1010591495 (Continued)
Main Bank Number: (956) 722-8333 TCB iTalk (24/7): 1-844-842-7211

NetTeller online Banking: Visit us online at www.tx-communitybank.com
MobiTle Banking: Get the TX Community Bank app for your Android or i0S device



1044

THE SEVEM FLAGS
EMS RAC ACCOUNT

THE SEVEN FLAGS 4
EMS RAC ACCOUNT

1216 SANTA MARIA S8 TheLtrAY 1216 SANTA MARIA '1 samni
! LAREDO. TX 76040 af1licns S meca LAREDO, TX 78040 ; Dlrlro1% P,
l
S Teapeakrea Loanvy, Five Jeds s woum.zs Sred (L _tweda Medioal Center I v .q:(,\ 1,3
Ton Q:hogﬂaod. four undred e =g ageters U89 %__ %MW\&«’r&‘O 323
*’Com \ "JCI:'-’mw
- He'h-r—.“-:. Larede, Tense TH04L o %wr—_-
18 € X . Meederoion BN . Fo LIS .7, Deoliocativa_
CLAL]2LBADC L0, w L0A059 0L G \ ~ AL 2LA L0 L0LS w20DA0S]
DDA REGULAR CHECK  Date: 08/21 Amount: $10,431.25 DDA REGULAR CHECK 45 Date: 08/18 Amount: $10,431.25
1039 ' : 1040
?&%2‘;’0““ A ss24a1/1149 E‘l‘nessHBAvg :gtl:‘o?!?ﬂ’ s
1216 SANTA MARIA 1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO, T 76040 BV & TE 7-- = S — {ZREDS, T 78080 —alylrces
o:azot_&me_Amanm_—J % 104m 28 mzezvm_cw%no\mmlsus 1043\
Mﬁ_ﬁmm%& an B B, Tea Macosond Looe deundved Mo, =00e 75 Azaﬂnlhu [0 ==y
—7¢
FpcdEigtney & t B pcuy = :
mmm%.mwl ars nll‘. L--u-n-—mu
e Q%'A‘)L—L O s S =
o EN. 218 & T 2caMocotiop =3 r 3
24 LLS2LB 014039 P AD A0S LLS S ©LILS2LA L0 I0LO = i0A059 LS5
t . T oy sy
DDA REGULAR CHECK 1039 Date: 08/29 Amount: $10,431.25 DDA REGULAR CHECK 1040 Date: 08/27 Amount: $10,431.25
THE SEVEN FLAGS 1041
EMS RAC ACCOUNT ez Es HAG ACCOUNT 1,?,‘,‘,&,,,
1210 SANTA MARIA l l 1218 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO, TX 70040 &l1leszs. - I LAREDO, TX 76040 _%_IJJ_ZQIS__"_“_ P——
Tl Vickorioos Cove Amoovanee . . 8 \G,Q‘Q\ 2s Gplethe Do EMS, I B \O0 S

Ten Pncusoand Cooe Vundved sl —oce. 251 vaa

TFen AoUscnd_kowe Yaundred Wi duy-One.;

Lﬁ(“ @ =

Texas .
e - A o BT e
g .
:'FV"IS mk\ocokm ._zxﬁzz_____ o EN_TS &.3., o\ AIOQ = e -
1230L92LA L0 A0OL L WD L0S] LLF S 2L ALR2L,A L0 A0L A w RO MOS59LS5e O
DDA REGULAR CHECK 1041 Date: 08/18 Amount: $10,431.25 DDA REGULAR CHECK 1042 Date: 08/25 Amount: $10,431.25
SEVEN FLAGS ¥ 1043 H Tne sEvew FLAGY 1046
WS HAC ACCOUNT 228010 ; C ACCOUNT @ 2amnen
1218 sn";;m E t e !Z oS :::5%’1': mrmu hbi
oy TTE @Sk s | ) Tezm @crrcy svee
Bulelt L cavedo LileNiea | $ O8R5 ! '___L.Lah.md.:._Am:mc.e_-_. Syt
Teo ooz Cene ) \\\xﬁc&\_\\wt\ag,_c\ﬁc_ Dollars B, | Ten Maoxeeod tour nundrod i @

Bapcdiuny < ;
L

30 LDSIFLLA] G

ara M(nn--lu. Ln-r‘-.'l‘cu.ilnll
MJLE.L,_E@\\QW
12iL92L8 O EDOL 3

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1043 Date: 08/18 Amount: $10,431.25
FLAGS 1047

T™HE
EMSE RAC ACCOUNT
1210 BANTA MARIA "-zam1n 40

LAREDO, TX 70040 ‘QITLZQB T PUTIp—
St LedAwes Ampolerce Coe 1 S oua.s

Ten Mnoosend. koo Mundrad Yoieies ~ hooxim. @ B,
,JCT : —_—7
H"\Lds_E&ch. NS e

LML 2LAL0CL0L? A0 LOSFLLISKE

i

2iiL92L8 0000046 = LOMOSS LI.QSM/

7

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1046 Date: 08/14 Amount: $10,431.25

SEVEN FLA
EMS RACACCOIINT
1210 SANTA MARIA
LARI:DO‘ TX 70040

5288 SRS -Cave —Amvie
TenhHioosand toor nundred Py

’,?Commumq-

crnu-c\.-—u lM'l’n—‘rml

;fx_.]&_ﬁm\mn_

eiliLvgeLg rinionLd v 10losRiLase

1048

[ SLIRITY

&y 1mme

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1047 Date: 08/14 Amounl $10,431.25

THE SEVEN FLAGS 4 1 049
EMS RAC ACCOUNY 88.2431/1148
‘ _b Gaw @RS AL
S Shahoe e | 3 ouacs
Teo Moossessd {eor muodvead ey TS/\0Tun B
e =K
J;;cm.m.m.q / " 7 !
;
a2 ll-ﬂamw l‘rﬂis'rcu- Teoa1
RN 7S, € T, R eaioccditn SR e =

NilL9 LA LOIM0LY LD L0SF LLIASH \

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1048 Date: 08/15 Amount: $10,431.25

T = 3T = g —rr T =T ]

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1049 Date: 08/15 Amount: $10,431.25

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1050 Date: 08/14 Amount: $10,431.25

1050

THE SEVEN FLA
et s
T 8040 aldalzars oo e
s e deove _Awbvdowce 1S OUR\.25
:teo}xuﬁcmd_(émr_w\Wm» B
Tenas T 7
"’me:ﬂ:y A 4
T Mietheraan fid Labeda, Tenns TROI
nihlEs ( \
ror 2. ._&Ql\ﬂm\iﬁﬂ ‘—-l:_iﬁ_%___-_"_
211L,92LB L1050 »wiDLOS9 LLI S
s s



THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL 1051
EMS RAC ACCOUNT e 2eune
1216 SANTA MARIA g 9O

~LAREDO; TX 70040 S — = /} » A=A 2 T

et Haa /% A cess )8 6,000.°°
_ SixmouLantd T ———a ooy

P S I D
=

1LLL92LA L0 0SS L W LOLOSH LS

BpcTitn AL I

THE SEVEN FLAGS v 1052

S L(/Elpods ;:"m
e S i Thaps Dﬂualop«waj(/’ s AR c N

%qﬁmﬁ%&gﬂ&ﬁééﬁa Pt e B B
”CTMM
B E s AR dect-(re

123069 2LABL01L0SE D05 L5

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1051 Date: 08/27 Amount: $6,000.00

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1052 Date: 08/22 Amount: $31,832.00






HEALTH

8163 Old Yankee Street, Suite B
Dayton, OH 45458

(937) 885-5827
jhart@germane-solutions.com

Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council

1216 Santa Maria Street
Laredo, TX 78040

OITNING DOORS POR IAIROVED COMMUNITY HEALTH

08/29/2025

invoice #
HAINV-00446

| Quantlty

1 Professional Fees

SFRAC: Self Assessment FY2025

Description

SFRAC Self-Assessment Activities: Hosted two virtual workgroup sessions to continue
review and approval of self-assessment scores and SMART goals associated with
measures that scored below “3” on August 1, 2025 and August 8, 2025. Completed
notes for both meetings. Edits to SMART goals reviewed in August 1, 2025 meeting
were completed and reviewed during the August 8th meeting for approval. Edits to
SMART goals completed in August 8th meeting with inclusion of planning discussion
with Coastal Bend HPP for additional information. Meeting with SFRAC Administrator,
Coastal Bend HPP staff conducted virtually on August 11, 2025 with follow up emails
confirming plan and language to include in SMART goal for HPP reporting. Finalized
SMART goals, crosswalk, and all meeting notes. Completed SMART goals workbook for
SFRAC Administrator to use in upload to DSHS. All finalized documents sent to SFRAC

Administrator on August 14, 2025. Attended GETAC Board Meeting on August 21, 2025.

Began drafting action items and planning for review with SFRAC Administrator in
September.

$6,000.00

Total: $6,000.00







eg’ MEMBER FDIC
T 6721 McPhetson Road
50269

mmunlty PO Box 4
Laiedo, TX 78045
(356) 722.8370

NOTKE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 9/10/25 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA, TRUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591396
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT Enclosures 1

1216 SANTA_MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures

Account Number 1010591396 Statement Dates 8/11/25 thru 9/10/25

Previous Balance 47,393.93 Days in the statement period

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledge 47,109. 09

1 checks/Debits 981.11 Average Col ected 47,109.09

Service Charge .00

Interest Pai .00

current Balance 46,412.82

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER

Date Check No Amount
9/02 1034 981.11

Denotes missing check numbers

DATILY BALANCE INFORMATION

Date Balance Date Balance
8/11 47,393.93 9/02 46,412.82
Main Bank Number: (956) 722-8333 TCB iTalk (24/7): 1-844-842-7211

NetTeller online Banking: Visit us online at www.tx- commun1tybank com
Mobile Banking: Get the TX Community Bank app for your Android or i0S device



THE SBEVEN FLAGS 1034

EEERs i foozs o
gmpene Solben R, Ketser' T gpey s
/ IM'(. ‘gf C‘AE;_&} M._%Lmnu - .

< i = A Sl A
rouls 2Ot BPR Aol (Aes Ay .
1233LQ2LA L0 03L L0 L0SALIFEN

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1034 Date: 09/02 Amount: $981.11



SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT



. Qi‘? e roic

6721 McPhetson Road

Comm t}’ PO Box 450289
Laredo, TX 78045
{956) 722-8313

NOVKCE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT INFORMATION

| Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 9/10/25 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591693
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT Enclosures 10

1216 SANTA_MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 10

Account Number 1010591693 Statement Dates  8/11/25 thru 9/10/25

Previous Balance 2,789.15 Days in the statement period 31

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 935.72

10 checks/Debits 2,789.15 Average Collected 935.72
Service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
Current Balance .00

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER
Date Check No Date Check No Amount

DATLY BALANCE INFORMATION

Balance Balance
8/11 2,789.15 8/18 1,115.66 8/29 278.93
8/14 2,231.33 8/25 836.75 9/05 .00
8/15 1,952.42 8/27 557.84
Main Bank Number: (956) 722-8333 TCB iTalk (24/7): 1-844-842-7211

NetTeller online Banking: Visit us online at www.tx-communitybank.com
Mobile Banking: Get the TX Community Bank app for your Android or i0S device



]
:
| SRR nsony counn. bl
1 1216 SANTA 248171149
: LAREDO, TX 78040 @ Z “ﬂ [ZCZS
1 r—3
i Pay to ‘n,)". N \ (‘em ) s @
i Order —L——Qm.u@\kcc. S Ve z-ﬁ . Q_\
! _ILMW:%M_\ STV = £
» R

FpclTtany ALK

CRiL2LB L0107
T r—

= i0059 2693w

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVIEORY COUNCIL
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT

1216 SANTA MARIA

LAREDO, TX 78040

sz

_@Aﬁlzo%

Paylnl}-ex e §} g i 3: xe |$ 7—_‘6 C\\
Fpc gt .

$T31 MePheraon Rd. Lavedo, Texns 78041
See TR gx23 N

1234L32L8L0120068 L0059 LB

DDA REGULAR CHECK 74 Date: 08/18 Amount: $278.94

THE CEVEN FLAGS REX
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT
1216 SANTA MARIA

LARE! 8040

Paytoihe ¢ o oN\o\n ng%;mmcﬁxs/ﬂs$ €714 . g4\
_‘Emo.sau&r&wwm (o =
 — 7
FpcSibny -

w!l&mu—l‘. IAMQ‘I'-.-MI
Re-Askcodmen Silee b Boedps f =
2lilLy 2,810 L070 » 10 LO5916930

. — H =

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1068 Date: 08/29 Amount: $278.91

THE SEVEN F 1071
SYBTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT o Ay
LAREDO, T 70040 el \olzozen

Sael Aexcuihess, Coce Awmpionce | $ 221 .oy
TLo MoMded Ssevextrn,

A0 A05 69 I

FpcKRitaiy
a-rzy .-l’h.'—-u l.n‘m"»nnml
S SN i Gt YN
"C11L,92L,81002107%

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1070 Date: 08/27 Amount: $278.91
1072

s8208178049

THE SEVEM FLAGS

SYSTEM DEVELOPMEN'I’ ACTCOUNT
1216 SANTA MARI

LAREDO, TX 7!040

—wllzore _

g

1$ 2%, A\

GTI MePherven Rd. Larcda, Texas 75011

L:nZ?JELD o S,
i .
roe e =MekaxNen “MJZ"‘VC%—'
LML LB LN LO72 LOLOST LES I

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1072 Date: 08/25 Amount: $278.91

Pay 1o il

Crlee o Pnof\\-u [A%LN
s = o} x\uodm_g&@nxs_.mga&—_s
",?Comwkq

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL 1075
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT el o)
218 SANTA MARIA "
Cllpip ) v fli.n (1azs =
Ty $ 2%, o
TLao undred Seecy - €y Dulee OB B
Ppciigtaiy -

FasTins3 .
1R —din wanon. TRouma . m_w_&
©LL3LY2LB L0 A07S5 e LOLOSTLES I

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1075 Date: 09/05 Amount: $278.93

1077

201/1140

SYSTEM mﬂw ACCOUNT
1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO, TX 78040

—olralzez=

' l’aylolhu _A i t l z $ Lﬁ% C\\
' e St 2 calioo oo @ g |
b

Yy . i
roe e = Aderiochian M—LA_T\%'_ :
LM 2LALONRAIDP? W AIDADST AL A I

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1077 Date: 08/14 Amount: $278.91

DDAREGULAR CHECK 1071 Date: 08/18 Amount: $278.91

THE SEVEN FLAGS AE 1073
‘S:STEM I:EAXAE;.'(:PMENT ACCOUNT PO
LAREDO, TX 78040 ‘a l “o szs —

Bass Lareda \olefine 1S 2278 . o

=5 <:::—~),/15222:é?“fi-ff—=====
<£?c£ﬁﬂ1q [
0721 Mcrhersen Hd. Lareda, Texne 78011

roe R e =Moo .

1220L92LBLOINL073 #LOLOST LER I

DDAREGULAR CHECK 1073 Date: 08/18 Amount: $278.91

RS oy T
- LAREDO, TX 78040
Onle e L,cg}._;_\r_c& Amdosonnce Ceng P T . (SN
TLao Yandeed. S, — ey

Foc B ~

ST Mo herecn B, Lareda, Tezas 78041

66 Tps-ax%a
For. M&‘ TV ey

- \5.4&_3.4?5:7(_4 -
©QLlLaALA LD LO0?E LD LOSS RS 3w

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1076 Date: 08/14 Amount: $278.91

THE SEVEN FLAG!
SYSTEM DEVELOPMEN\‘ ACCOI.INT
MARIA ~

1078

ajan

For gt b L f
123 1L92LE L0 10%8 »OWDSRIGTIAC

ODAREGULAR CHECK 1078 Date: 08/15 Amount: $278.91



HOLDING ACCOUNT



PO Box 450263
Latedo, TX 78045
(956) 722-8313

Corﬁm%‘i;‘m{ty 6721 McPhetson Road

NOTKCE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 9/10/25 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591792
HOLDING ACCOUNT Enclosures

1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0

Account Number 1010591792 Statement Dates 8/11/25 thru 9/10/25

Previous Balance .50 Days in the statement period 31

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger .50

. Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected .50
service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
Current Balance .50

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION

Date Balance
8/11 .50

Main Bank Number: (956) 722-8333 TCB iTalk (24/7): 1-844-842-7211
NetTeller online Banking: Visit us online at www.tx-communitybank.com
Mobile Banking: Get the TX Community Bank app for your Android or i0S device






FY25 OPERATING AND EXPENSE BUDGET
(YEAR-END REPORT)

FY25 SFRAC GENERAL FUND TOTAL

PROJECTED
MEMBERSHIP REVENUE
OPERATING
SUMMARY s
General Fund Projected
Membership Revenue for $15,900.00
FY25
Actual Membership Funds
Collected to Date $15,900.00
Total Memberhsip Dues (+/-) $0.00 $15,705.00
FY25 GRANT PROGRAM
FUNDS
EMS County Assistance
Grant (Regular) $92,417.00
Senate Bill 500 Funding $0.00
System Development (i.e., $46,021.00
Tobacco)
Exceptional Item {E.L.}
Legislative Funding (EMS $150,000.00
RAC)
EMS RAC Grant (Regular} $31,832.00
FY24 Fund Raiser
{Bowlathon) $5,150.97
Total $325,420.97
FY25 General Fund (Program Operation) Expenditures FY25 EMS County Assistance Grant Allocations
B Projected iy
Projected Actual Difference Allocat:on Totals R lbuted Adusted Totals
Cost Cost {Paid) Funds Added
Post Office Annual Fee $190.00 $182.00 $8.00 Bronze Starr Ambulance $5,494.00 $5,494.00
Malling & Shipping Costs $100.00 $30.45 $60.55 et $5,494,00 $5,494.00
EMS/Fire
VFIS Insurance $1,500.00 $1,480.00 $20.00 Angel Care Ambulance $5,494.00 $5,494.00
TETAF Dues $900.00 $1,000.00 -$100.00 Webb County Volunteer $5,494.00 $5,494.00
Fire/EMS
CPA IRS 1099 Filing $155.00 -$155.00 Victorious Care Ambulance $5,494.00 $5,494.00
CPA IRS 990 Filing/Income .
Statement $1,000.00 $1,100.00 -$100.00 Priority EMS $5,494.00 $5,494.00
RAC Chair/GETAC Travel .
{November 2024, Austin, $3,800.00 $1,911.22 $1,888.78 Zapata County Fire/EMS $15,175.00 $15,175.00
| h 2025,
:E::: TT':')’e (March 2025 $2,000.00 $1,029.57 $970.43 Texas Superior Ambulance $5,494.00 $5,494.00
Ti
GETAC Travel {June 2025 $2,000.00 $584.33 $1,415.67 Laredo Lifeline $5,494.00 $5,494.00
Austin, Tx.)
GETAC Travel {August 2025 $2,000.00 $981.11 $1,018.89 Medpoint Ambulance $5,494.00 $5,494.00
Austin, Tx.)
TETAF Annual
X X 494,00
Workshop/Confernce $0.00 $0.00 Primary Care Ambulance $5,494.00 $5,49
GoDaddy Web Site Renewal
X X B .47
Zoom $165.00 $159.90 $5.10 Lalitas Ambulance Care $5,494.00 $5,494.00
Supplies $150.00 $150.00 Skyline EMS $16,808.00 $16,808.00

Advertising/Publication $1,500.00 $1,500.00 Total $92,417.00 $92,417.00 $0.00




Accounting Software $2,268.00 -$2,268.00

Subtotal $15,705.00 $11,301.05 $4,403.95
Total Under/Over Budget: -$4,403.95
FY25 General Fund (FY24 Bowlathon Fund Raiser) ’ | FY25 EMS RAC Grant
Funds Projected Actual
Fund Utilization Balance Differen
Generated Cost Cost Paid ikt
Bowlathon Proceeds $10,305.00 $0.00 $10,305.002 Administrative Fee (1st Qtr.) $7,958.00 $7,958.00 $0.00
s et O $3,041.26 -$3,041.26 Administrative Fee (2nd Qtr.)  $7,958.00 $7,958.00 $0.00
Reimbursements to Joe
S e  taend $2,112.77 -$2,112.77 Administrative Fee (3rd Qtr.) $7,958.00 $7,958.00 $0.00
Purchase
B e $200.00 -$200.00 Adminstrative Fee (ath Qtr.) $7,958.00 $7,958.00 $0.00
Contribution
Total $10,305.00 $5,354.03 $4,950.97 Subtotal $31,832.00 $31,832.00 $0.00
FY25 General Fund (Unaccounted Laspsed Restricted
DSHS Funds ) |
Total Disposition | Entity Receiving
Source Account ‘;::aL:;l;:nds of Suspended Disposed
p Funds Funds/Date
System Development $7,275.51 (67,275.51) '2’:::/ March 24,
EMS County Assistance $39.00 ($39.00) g::: ek 28,
FY25 System Development Grant Allocations FY25 EMS RAC Grant (Exeptional Item Funds) $150,000
Projected Re-Distributed Adjusted Projected Actual
. 4 N Fund Balance
Allocation Totals Funds Added  Allocation Totals Cost Cost Paid
Entity Allocations/Project
Bronze Starr Ambulance $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91 Funding (To Be Determined) $125,175.00
Laredo Fire Department News Paper Publications
EMS/Fire $3,068.06 $3,060.06 $278.91 (HHS Job Posting) $825.00 $825.00 $0.00
Angel Care Ambulance $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $0.00 Professional Services Cost $24,000.00 $24,000.00
‘F"I”ee';z :1‘;“"“' R $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91 Subtotal $150,000.00 $24,825.00 $137,175.00
Victorious Care Ambulance $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91
Priority EMS $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91
taredo Lifeline $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91
Zapata County Fire/EMS $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $0.00
Laredo Medical Center $3,068.11 $3,068.11 $278.94
Doctors Hospital of Laredo $3,068.11 $3,068.11 $278.93
Lalitas Ambulance Care $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91
Medpoint Ambulance $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $278.91 Local Planning Grant (LPG)
Projected Actual
Primary Care Ambulance $3,068.06 $3,060.06 $278.91 ) I Difference
Cost Cost

Skyline EMS $3,068.06 $3,068.06 $0.00 To 8e Determined $0.00 $0.00 $0.00



Subtotal $46,021.00 $42,952.94 $3,068.06 Subtotal $0.00

Grand Total: $46,021.00 ; FY25 EMS RAC Exeptional Item (E.l.) Allocation Totals
Proj d Adj
rojecte: djusted Added Total Award
Cost Total
Bronze Starr Ambulance $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Webb County Volunteer
Fire/EMS $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Victorious Care Ambulance $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Priority EMS $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Laredo Lifeline $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25

Zapata County Fire/EMS $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
taredo Medical Center $7,823.42 $2,607.83 $10,431.25
T SRR MR S
Medpoint Ambulance $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Lalitas Ambulance Care $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Primary Care Ambulance $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Skyline EMS $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25
Dignicare Ambulance $7,823.44 $2,607.81 $10,431.25

Subtotal $125,175.060 $31,293.74 $125,175.00




ITEM 26-05 (TAB 4)



Income

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025

Income Estimated Actual Difference
Membership Fees 17,337.50 2,250.00 (15,087.50)
Fundraiser 0.00 0.00
EMS County Assistance Grant 92,624.00 92,624.00 0.00
System Development 46,021.00 46,021.00 0.00
EMS RAC / Exceptional Item (E.I.) 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00
EMS RAC (Administrative) 31,758.00 31,759.00 0.00
0.00
Total income 337,741.50 322,654.00 (15,087.50)




Contractual Expenses

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025)

Expenses Total Budgeted Tota! Balance
Remittance
Contract Between SFRAC & STDC (Program
Administration & Manageilwent -CE(M:?%:C/Admin) 31,759.00 . 31,759.00
Administrative Fee (1st Qtr.) 0.00
Administrative Fee (2nd Qtr.) 0.00
Administrative Fee (3rd Qtr.) 0.00
Adminstrative Fee (4th Qtr.) 0.00
Contract Between SFRAC & Health Access (Phase
Il Self-Assessment Program Implementation - EMS  72,000.00 0.00 72,000.00
RAC/E.I.)
Professional Service Fee (September 2025) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (October 2025) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (November 2025) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (December 2025) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (January 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee {February 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (March 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (April 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (May 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (June 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (July 2026) 0.00
Professional Service Fee (August 2026) 0.00
Total Contractual Expenses 103,759.00 0.00 103,759.00




FY24 Fundraiser Fund
Utilization/Expenses

(General Fund)

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025

Funds

Expenses Funds Utilized Balance
Generated

Proceeds from FY24 Bowlathon Fundraiser $10,305.00 0.00 10,305.00
F iser E i

undraiser Expense Reimbursements to Joe 3,041.26 (3,041.26)
Gonzalez and Jorge Delgado
EMS MCI Wristband Purchase 2,112.77 (2,112.77)
Ricardo Jaime Fundraiser Contribution 200.00 (200.00)
Wristband Purchased (Potentially) 0.00

Total Contractual Expenses 0.00 5,354.03 4,950.97




Operating
Expenses

(General Fund)

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025

Expenses Projected Cost  Actual Difference
Post Office Annual Fee 190.00 190.00
Mailing & Shipping Costs 100.00 100.00
VFIS Insurance 1,500.00 1,500.00
TETAF Dues 1,000.00 1,000.00
CPA IRS 1099 Filing 160.00 160.00
CPA IRS 990 Filing/Income Statement 1,100.00 1,100.00
FTR)/(\()I Chair/GETAC Travel (November 2025, Austin, 3,800.00 3,800.00
GETAC Travel {March 2026, Austin, Tx.) 1,500.00 1,500.00
GETAC Travel (June 2026 Austin, Tx.) 1,500.00 1,500.00
GETAC Travel (August 2026 Austin, Tx.) 1,500.00 1,500.00
TETAF Annual Workshop/Confernce 0.00 0.00
GoDaddy Web Site Renewal {Debit) 450.00 450.00
Zoom 165.00 165.00
Supplies 150.00 150.00
Advertising/Publication 1,500.00 1,500.00
Bank Fees 100.00 100.00
Accounting Software 2,300.00 2,300.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Total operating expenses 17,015.00 0.00 17,015.00




System
Development

Fund Allocations

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025

Eligible Entities Propos?d ki . Difference
Allocation Allocation
Bronze Starr Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Laredo Fire Department EMS/Fire 2,556.72 2,556.72
Angel Care Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS 2,556.72 2,556.72
Victorious Care Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Priority EMS 2,556.72 2,556.72
Laredo Lifeline 2,556.72 2,556.72
Villa Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Texas Superior Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Zapata County Fire/EMS 2,556.72 2,556.72
Laredo Medical Center 2,556.74 2,556.74
Doctors Hospital of Laredo 2,556.74 2,556.74
Lalitas Ambulance Care 2,556.72 2,556.72
Medpoint Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Primary Care Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
Skyline EMS 2,556.72 2,556.72
Digni Care 2,556.72 2,556.72
United Med Ambulance 2,556.72 2,556.72
0.00
0.00

Total operating expenses 46,021.00 0.00 46,021.00




EMS County
Assistance

Allocations

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025

Eligible Entities Propos.ed Actual . Difference
Allocation Allocation
Bronze Starr Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Laredo Fire Department EMS/Fire 4,348.57 4,348.57
Angel Care Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS 4,348.58 4,348.58
Victorious Care Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Priority EMS 4,348.57 4,348.57
Laredo Lifeline 4,348.58 4,348.58
Villa Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Texas Superior Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Zapata County Fire/EMS 15,051.00 15,051.00
Lalitas Ambulance Care 4,348.57 4,348.57
Medpoint Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Primary Care Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
Skyline EMS 16,693.00 16,693.00
Digni Care 4,348.57 4,348.57
United Med Ambulance 4,348.57 4,348.57
0.00
0.00

Total operating expenses 92,624.00 0.00 92,624.00




EMS RAC
Exceptional Item

(E.l.) Allocations

Fiscal Year 2026 - September 2025

Eligible Entities Propos?d etia) ) Difference
Allocation Allocation
Bronze Starr Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Laredo Fire Department EMS/Fire 4,333.33 4,333.33
Angel Care Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS 4,333.33 4,333.33
Victorious Care Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Priority EMS ’ 4,333.33 4,333.33
Laredo Lifeline 4,333.33 4,333.33
Villa Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Texas Superior Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Zapata County Fire/EMS 4,333.33 4,333.33
Lalitas Ambulance Care 4,333.33 4,333.33
Medpoint Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Primary Care Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Skyline EMS 4,333.33 4,333.33
Digni Care 4,333.33 4,333.33
United Med Ambulance 4,333.33 4,333.33
Laredo Medical Center 4,333.36 4,333.36
Doctors Hospital of Laredo 4,333.36 4,333.36

Total operating expenses 78,000.00 0.00 78,000.00




ITEM 26-06 (TAB 5)



SUPPORT DOCUMENT revised 1211224

In Support of Reimbursement Requests for

in Support of Relmbursement Requests for

EMS/RAC EXPENDITURES
CURRENT FISCAL RAC NAME Seven Flags Reglonal Advisory Counci RACNAME  S°vonFlags Reglonal Advisary
2025 Councll
YEAR (FY}
Prior FY Year EMS/RAC Total Funds Avallable for Total of P
Camrytorward $ - Current Year Program Costs Administrative Costs Administrs
:umr;:l:' FY EMSRAC Allocation | ¢ 31,832.00 s 31,832.00 $ . 31,832.00 | §
Current FY EMS/RAC
Expenditures $ 31,832.00
Less: Unexpended Prior FY s E
Camyforward {lf any)
Prior Year Carryforward has been Expended. Batance is Now $0.00. .
I Total Unexpended Funds $ \
{Subject to Camryforward)
Program Income $ .
13t Quarter 2nd Quarter
Current FY Activities September October November | 1st Quarter Totals|  December January February 2nd Quarter Totals|
PERSONNEL List $ $ $ $ -8 $
$ $ - $ - $
FRINGE BENEFITS Frnge Benefits $ s o s $ q il 3. 5 10
0.003 0.00 0.00; 0.00 0.00 0.00}
TRAVEL List each individual expense. $ il . Hls c |0 % & 10 5 10 T
Local Travel 000} 0.00) 0.00 0.00} 0.00 0.00
Report TOTAL costs for sach
Conference sttended on a single
line.
EQUIPMENT List each indvidual expense. $ P K ] . - s $ - - s o |E}
0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00; 0.0}
SUPPLIES List each ndividual expense. $ - s - - |8 $ - - s - s
0.00] 0.00 0.00] 0.00 .00 0.00
CONTRACTUAL List each individual expense. $ - s . - I - Is . = 16 4 |}
i vl 0.00] 0.00] 0.00 0.00] 0.00} 0.00,
OTHER List each individusl expense. $ s o =l ™| . 50 - s
0.00} 0.00} 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00}
INDIRECT COSTS List costs by individual, if appbicable and report all Non-Personnel indirect costs s s $ s s s
a3 one lump sum.
0.004 0.00) 0.00 0.00} 0.00 0.00,
124
EMS-RAC FUNDS  ANon-Personnal indirect Costs o/1%2025 ms: M
TOTAL COSTS $ $ $ $ $ $




MONTHLY BREAKDOWN OF PROGRAM & ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

rSeptembef | October I November |Is10ttartarTomIs| December | January I February ImouanerTowsl

Program Costs
PERSONNEL]  [$ $ - s s $ - s $
FRINGE BENEFITS| | [ $ $ $ $ $ $
TRAVEL| |3 3 $ $ s $ $ $
EQUIPMENT]| $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
supPLES| |s $ $ s $ $ $ $
CONTRACTUAL| |3 3 $ $ $ $ $ $
omier| | 3 $ $ $ s $ $
TOTAL COSTS| $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
[Administrative Costs
PERSONNEL] |3 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
FRINGEBENEFITS| | $ $ $ s $ s $
RaveL| [ $ $ s $ - {3 s $
EQUPMENT| [ $ $ $ [] $ - s $
SUPPLIES| | $ - |8 $ s $ $ $ $
CONTRACTUAL|  |$ $ - s $ $ $ - Is $
OTHER | § $ $ $ $ $ 3 [
orect] |3 $ $ $ $ $ $ L
TotaLcosts| s $ $ $ $ $ $ $
$ $ $ $ s $ $ s
Name & phone number of Person Completing q P A AT T oA ETS T
this Form
20f24
EMS-RAC FUNDS 9/18/2025 9:54 PM




In Support of Relmbursement Requests for In Support of Reimbursement Requests for

RAC NAME Seven Flags Reglonal Advisory RAC NAME Seven Flags Reglonal Advisory
Council Council
rogram & Data Check
itive Costs
31,832.00 Program + Admin Costs = Current FY Expenditures. Good jobl
3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
March Aprl May 3rd Quarter Totals June July August 4th Quarter Totals | Total Expenditures
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ -
$ $ $ $ -8 $
$ - |8 - ¢ E ) - 18 - |8 - |8 D E ] C |
0.00 omf 000 0,004 0.00 .00
$ - s -8 <08 B ) L |} - o |t - |8 -
0.00 0.00 000 000 000 0.00
$ - |8 CO k2 C £ 3 - |8 Cl |} - ¢ $
000 0.00] 000 0.00) 0.00 0.00]
$ - 18 o | - s - |8 O |} o 1 = s $
0.00 000 000 000 0.00 0.0
$ - s B £ - |8 -8 - s B | 31,8200 | § 31,83200 | $ 3180200
0.0 000 000 0.00) 0.00 3183200
$ K ) $ -8 $ D ] $ $ $
0.00 0.00] 0.00 020 0.00) 0.0
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 3
0.00) 0.00 000 000 0.00 0.00
40f24
HMS-RAC FUNDS 911972025 9:54 PM
$ - 18 B O - 18 a B - |8 - {3 31,0200 [ $ 3103200 | $ 3183200




3183200

1,832.00

31,832.00

31,63200

I July 2022 I August |4Ih Quarter Totals | Total Expen(fmnesl

May |3rd Quarter Tuulsl June

Apil

31,8020018

31,83200 | $

3183200 §

3183200 §

$

31,60200 8
3183200 §

$
$

John R. Keiser / 956-722-3985

John R. Keiser / 956.722-3995

Sof24

8/18/2025 9 54 PM

EMS-RAC FUNDS






SUPPORT DOCUMENT revioes tarass W Suppent of Relmbxrsoment Roquests far In Support of Rakmbersement Roquends for
RAC SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

1| | | |

[k i
[———fi=—lossmua]yi——fpumees.) s ommaeay]¢ mmsss jyv

Name & phone number of Person Completing
this Form




In Support of Relmbursemant Requaests for

in Support of Reimbursement Raquests for

racume | [SEnp o SR ASEY RAC NAME Saven Flagts Reglonal Advisary Coundil
rogram &
b Data Check
402100 |  Progrem + Admin Costs = Curmvet FY Expandtures. Good Jobl
3o Guarr T Quarter
Merdh A Mgy [wdouateToms|  wme oy Aogust |4 Quarer Totas| Total Expenciures
s s s s s s s s s 5
H H >
s s > 1B s s f s ' s z
0008 .00
' s s =B s s s ' s 3
©.00§ .00
' . - s s s s i ) s 3
0.0
s - s - s s s s - s s s
2.008 .00
s s L s s s - s s ' s G
0.004 0.0
$ amsals sseels  ssals asesls  saasls s v s uano
3063.06¢4 2189
3068.11; 54
3089064
3068.064
3068.064
3088.11) msy
306308 mu|
06808 s
3068.08) ms|
3068 08 e
3068.08 9
3063 08 )
2068.08 78
3063.08) )
s s - |s s s s s s s s
0.004 .00
$ 30680818 15,340401 % H5148]8 4295284 1§ 308908(8 3 3 10600818 A0
] 46021.00
[ Marth | o | ey |Momaiotahl e l oy 222 I Augst Iammrm Tota Expandtures
0 1P 3 v : v T 3
s s s s 3 s s :
s s s s a s s :
s s s - s : s s ;
s - s s - s ] s - |p g
s s s s a s s :
$ 3.050.06 [ $ 1540401 § Nsuasls 42952048 3,088.08 $ .Uk 4541100
s aouos|s  wsowslt  meuals  amam|s  ssam|s D s seam[s s
v = v 7 T
s s s - s .
s s s - s
s s s - s o
s s s s o
s - s ’ s s o
s s ] s s .
s : s ] s s g
s D s s s s S s h 3
3 308808 § 1534040 $ L XCTY R 29520 § 308308 § -8 $ 306808 § 480100







i

$ = .m. =T u P $ Y ¢ (i mo |u. Fo=" o!o&o._a:.yzv:_gi._. UIHIO
000 oo fooo 000 0 0
sl - s| - s| - sl - s ﬁs s ﬁs . TYNLOVEINGD
00'0 000 Jooo 000 Jooo 0
s| - s| - s| - s| - s| - $ gs - ‘osuadxe [enpupU] Y388 15T [
000 000 00’0 000 00'0 Jooe
$| - $ TN sl - $| - $| - s - ‘asuadxo enpipu] Yee s ANINAND3
‘suf) oilus ® uo pepuoe
NOSTId Waee pur souIeu0)
4989 40} 303 TY10L Modwy
00'0 000 000 000 loo'o fooo AR 3|
s| - s| - s] - s| - s| - 5] - 05UBdXS [BNPIPU] 4OUO 1571 RETCTS
000 000 fooo 000 000 000
{3 .0 $ 1 s - ST $] - Lo syoueq ebuyg 81143N36 IONRII
[ s s [
$ $ $ $ $ $ 1w TINNOSUI
S{EI0L JOYEND) PUZ Aerugey Asenuep Jaqwedeg S|eo) jepenD S| | JequeaoN 1640R0 Jequaldeg SANIARIY A4 Juauiny
JepenY puz Joueny s
s (sanohued 03
1s{gns) spun pepusdxeun [RoL,
¢ {Auw )} Aue)
Ad Joud papusdxeup) 8397
00'000°05 $ sunypusdxy [3 9101,
$ | 00°000'%Z $ | 00°000'92Z1 $ 00°000'051 00°000°051 $ JUNOUTY UOHROYIY 13
ensjuwpy Je0, Juauny
[ ujw 09 weibos 1RO A 40
djofelolL i ol . < 10} OE[IEAY SPUN [2}0) $]  poemioylusy [3wep g Jopd
— e P~ cz02 (Ad) uvaA
Kiosiapy [euoiBoy sBejy ueres VNV 1unod Arosiapy jeuobey A0S L IvISId LNFWAND
STUNLIANIIX3 13
0 boy quiey Jo woddng ) o) | quiey jo poddng u| verizLpenat | NIRNJOAQ LYOddNS







4

00°000'5Z1 ¢ | 00'siL'szL $ 0 $ $ oq £24] L= 5
1000009 =
000009 1000008 100'0009 000 fjooo i)
00°0009Z ¢ | 0000092 $ | 6000021 $ | oooo's 000009 ¢ - sl s] - $ ﬁE H
000 foon Joae
) [ $ . $ 8| - 8| - t s
000 oo loa'o
" t s - H sl - g| - ] - s
000 000 000
- s 3 s - s s| - s| - s| - t
000 00’0 j00¢
2 ¢ - s s| - [ s| - §| - s| - ;
- s s - s
sl - $ 5| - s| - s| - $ s - $
senypuadx3 [eloL | SiejoL Jeuent iy isnbimy Anp sunf S|EJ0L JBuenD pig fep Judy ]
Jeuend yiy JopenD pig
1q0{ poog "semypuedx3 A4 JWBLNY = §180) UUIPY + wesBosg 00°000'051
51509 OAI
%38y ejeq 3 wieibos
11unog Kiosiapy [euciBey sBeid usaes 3NVN OV L INVN OV
AKsosiapy reuoiBey sBeyd ueres
04 bey 10 poddns v Joj sjsenbey Juswesinquiiey jo poddng uf




19






DISTRIBUTION REPORT
EMS/COUNTY

Date Completed: | 9/16/2025 Person Completing Form: I John R. Keiser |
Grantee Name: | Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council I
Grantee Address: 1216 Santa Maria

| Laredo, Texas 78040 |

Phone Number: 956-722-3995 Contract No. (Number is on your Contract): HHS001336600020
Contract FY: 2025 Contract Term: 9/1/2024 to 8-31-2025
Prior FY Year EMS/County Carryforward S -
Current FY EMS/County Allocation Amount
Current FY EMS/County Expenditures ) 92,417.00
Less: Unexpended Prior FY Carryforward (if $
any) 3
Total Unexpended Funds Subject Prior Year Carryforward has been Expended. Balance is Now $0.00.
$ (92,417.00)
to Car
AMOUNT TO EMS PROVIDER
EMS PROVIDER RECEIVING FUNDS COUNTY (AMOUNT MUST BE A WHOLE
NUMBER)
Bronze Starr Ambulance Webb $5,494.00
Laredo Fire Department EMS/Fire Webb $5,494.00
Angel Care Ambulance Webb $5,494.00
Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS Webb $5,494.00
Victorious Care Ambulance Webb $5,494.00
Priority EMS Webb $5,494.00
Zapata County Fire/EMS Zapata $15,175.00
Texas Superior Ambulance Webb $5,494.00
Laredo Lifeline Webb $5,494.00
Medpoint Ambulance Webb $5,494.00
Primary Care Ambulance Webb $5,494.00
Lalitas Ambulance Care Webb $5,494.00
Skyline EMS Webb $16,808.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
PAGE 1 TOTAL $92,417.00
PAGE 2 TOTAL $0.00
PAGE 3 TOTAL $0.00
PAGE 4 TOTAL $0.00
Carryforwad TOTAL $0.00
GRAND TOTAL (ALL PAGES) $92,417.00

PRINTED: 9/22/20259:57 AM
1



ITEM 26-07 (TAB 6)



Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

An Annual Report is to be submitted to DSHS, Office of EMS/Trauma Systems no later
than October 15, 2025. The annual report will cover the past fiscal year (September 1,
2024 thru August 31, 2025), as stipulated in the RAC Systems Development portion of
your FY25 Contract. Additional information may also be entered or submitted as an
attachment to this report.

RAC Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council

Report Period FROM: September 1,2024  TO: August 31, 2025

1.

2.

3.

On Attachment A., provide current information for RAC Officers and Executive
Committee/Board as of September 1%,

Needs Assessments (Provide a narrative paragraph describing how needs were
identified. Give details outlining the decision-making strategy the RAC used to meet
identified needs and identify patterns of regional resource distribution. For example,
what kind of equipment was allocated to whom, and for what purpose? What were
the number topics and attendees of education/training events? How were they
evaluated? Using a table like the one shown below may assist in this process.)

At the beginning of each fiscal year, between September and November, members are
asked to submit individual entity needs assessments on a designated form, along with
other required membership documents. Items listed on needs assessments by local
EMS/hospital entities in the region are usually acquired with funds received by the
RAC through System Development and EMS County Assistance funds.

Administrative/Operational & Clinical:

a. How has the RAC identified all healthcare organizations in the region that
might be involved in trauma, injury prevention, emergency healthcare,
rehabilitation, and disaster management? What efforts did the RAC make to
maximize inclusion of its constituents into the RAC to continue to develop an
integrated trauma system?

The SFRAC readily responds to requests from entities on becoming a member
of the RAC from EMS entities in the region. Information is provided to them
regarding membership. During this period, there were two EMS entities who
joined the SFRAC as participating members (i.e., Primary Care and Digni
Care).

b. Summarize the need for and outcomes of specially called RAC meetings.

During this period there were no special meeting called by the SFRAC .

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 1 of 14




Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

¢. Report any projected realignments of counties in trauma service area.
No plans to realign within this region.

d. Describe the RAC’s role with facilities within the trauma service area prior to
or during trauma center designations/re-designations that occurred within past
twelve months. You may also describe the RAC’s role with facilities outside
the trauma service area, if applicable.

The role of the SFRAC is limited to the issuance of member status letters for
the purpose of designation or re-designation confirming participation in the
RAC. During the FY25 program year, the SFRAC issued three (3) letters for
re-designation to local hospital, namely, one for Doctors Hospital of Laredo
for Maternal re-designation. And two (2) for Laredo Medical Center for
Trauma and Stroke.

e. Describe how the RAC administratively and operationally contributed to and
participated in Injury Prevention initiatives within past twelve months. (Please
provide a brief summary of all injury prevention activities describing the
RAC’s level of involvement.)

During the FY2025 program cycle Doctors Hospital and Laredo Medical
Center conducted several courses for Stop the Bleed.

f. Describe the most significant findings of the RAC's SQI/Performance
Improvement Committee within past twelve months. What changed as a
result of that/those findings?

No SQI/Performance Improvements to report. The SFRAC does not have a
SQl/Performance Improvement Committee formed yes but will create one
during the FY26 program cycle as part of the RAC Self-Assessment process
and improvement goals. SFRAC committees are limited to the following:
Neonatal/NICU, Maternal, EMS/Prehospital, Trauma/Injury Prevention,
Stroke, and Cardiac/STEMI.

g. To what degree were physicians in the trauma service area involved in the
resolution of adverse patient care findings identified by the RAC's

SQl/Performance Improvement Committee.

The SFRAC does not have a SQI/Performance Improvement Committee.

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 2 of 14



Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

h. Describe activities the RAC was involved in that assisted or encouraged EMS
and FRO participation in the RAC within past fiscal year (e.g.
teleconferencing, video/conference calls, etc.).

Meetings now are customarily held in person, however, the SFRAC has
retained its subscription to Zoom in the event that an EMS, physicians, or
vendors are not able to attend meetings in person, a virtual platform (i.e.,
Zoom) can be made available.

i. Identify problems or areas of concern identified in past twelve months
adversely impacting RAC operations.

Lack of involvement among the RAC members. Lack of EMS entities
consistently reporting runs on the registry.

4. Is the information identified on Texas Secretary of State/Comptroller of Public
Accounts (https:/mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/coa/search.do) website current? If not, what
actions have been taken to ensure Certification of Franchise Tax Account Status
(Registered Agent/Office) is current with the Texas Secretary of State/Comptroller of
Pubic Accounts?

Yes.

5. Summarize any issues/concerns that occurred in past twelve months that required
technical assistance from the Office of EMS/Trauma System Coordination Group.

Technical assistance was sought with DSHS to interdict in advising EMS to
participate in the SFRAC in addition to improving on registry uploading of EMS
runs.

6. What method will the RAC utilize to ensure member organizations receive a copy of
this Annual Report?

The report is presented to the Board of Directors as an action item for their review
and approval.

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 3 of 14



(Rev. 08/2018)

Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

Complete and include with the Annual Report the following:
Attachment A — Officers/Board Members
Attachment B — Annual Bylaws Affidavit

Attachment C — Annual Regional Trauma System Plan Affidavit

Annual Participation Report
Attachment D — Designated Hospitals
Attachment E — Hospitals Seeking Designation

Attachment F — EMS Providers
Attachment G - First Responder Organizations

Page 4 of 14



Regional Advisory Council

(RAC)

Annual Report

ATTACHMENT A

FY26 DIRECTORS / OFFICERS (EXECUTIVE) BOARD

MEMBERS CONTACT INFORMATION AND TERM PERIODS

Office/Board

Name o Term Affiliation Telephone Email
Position
Armando Parra Director N/A Primary 956-462-5390 Primaryambulance @ yahoo.com
Ambulance
Director N/A Doctors Hospital | 956-523-2193 letisia.colon@uhsinc.com
Letisia Colon of Laredo
Director N/A BronzeStar 956-712-3667 bronzestaramb@ yahoo.com
Hector M. Medina, Jr. gl
Service
Chairman (Board { 2-yr. Priority EMS 956-251-5318 admin @priorityemstx.com
Jorge Delgado Officer) 9/1/24 to
8/31/26
Incoming 2-yr. Angel Care 956-725-7484 desvet297 @yahoo.com
Secretary (Board | 9/1/2025 | Ambulance
Reynaldo Veliz Officer) to
8/31/2027
Incoming Vice- 2-Yr. City of Laredo 956-718-6000 aresparza@ci.laredo.tx.us
Chairman (Board | 9/1/2025 Fire EMS
; Officer) to
Adrian Esparza 8/31/2027
Treasurer 2-yr. Laredo Medical 956-796-2309 Jose_gonzalez@chs.net
9/1/2024 | Center
Jose “Joe” Gonzalez to
8/31/2026
Director N/A Villa Ambulance | 956-568-2916 Villaambulance@gmail.com
Lorenzo A. Ochoa Service
Director N/A Webb County 956-523-5700 rirangel @ webbcountytx.gov
Ricardo Rangel V.olunteer
Fire/EMS
Director N/A Zapata County 956-765--9942 Firepolicel 14@gmail.com
. . . Volunteer
Chief Daniel Arriaga Fire/EMS
} . Director N/A Victorious Care 956-568-1178 Victorvillarreal8§784 @yahoo.com
Victor Villarreal
Ambulance
Service
. . Director N/A Skyline EMS 956-682-7222 Kharris286 @gmail.com
Kevin L. Harris
Mike Martinez Director N/A Capital Care 956-712-8911 capitalcareems @ymail.com
EMS
Director N/A Texas Superior 956-568-3380 txsuperiorambulance @outlook.com
Gilbert Guardiola Ambulance
Director N/A Laredo Lifeline 956-602-0387 lifelinepeter @yahoo.com
Peter Gonzalez
Director N/A Medpoint 956-728-7707 medpointambulance @yahoo.com
Juan Medellin Ambulance, Inc.
Director N/A Lalitas 956-516-4499 if.lalitasamb@outlook.com
Ismael Flores Ambulance
Care, LLC.

(Rev. 08/2018)

Page § of 14




Regional Advisory Council

Annual Report

(RAC)

OFFICERS / EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

Name Ofﬁce{l.loard Term Affiliation Telephone Email
Position
Chairman (Board | 2-yr. Priority EMS 956-251-5318 admin @priorityemstx.com
Jorge Delgado Officer) 9/1124 to
8/31/26
Incoming Vice- 2-Yr. City of Laredo 956-718-6000 Aresparza@ci.laredo.tx.us
Chairman (Board 9/1/2025 Fire EMS
Adrian R. Esparza Officer) to
8/31/2027
Treasurer 2-yr. Laredo Medical 956-796-2309 Jose_gonzalez@chs.net
9/1/2024 | Center
Jose *Joe” Gonzalez to
8/31/2026
Incoming 2-yr. Angel Care 956-725-7484 desvet297 @yahoo.com
Reynaldo Veliz Secretary (Board 9/1/25to | Ambulance
Officer) 8/31/2027

(Rev. 08/2018)

Page 6 of 14




Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

ATTACHMENT B
ANNUAL BYLAWS AFFIDAVIT

The RAC shall document an annual review of its bylaws. (§ Rule 157.123: Essential Criteria
Defined. A.12)

RAC NAME: Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council has completed an annual review and/or
revision of the RAC’s Bylaws with a documented date of and ratified by member organizations
on August 30, 2025.

Is a current copy of the RAC’s bylaws available for review on the RAC’s web site?
[XTIYES [ ]NO

If NO, is a copy is attached to this report?
[ JYES [ INO

A page summarizing revisions/additions made to the bylaws this contract reporting year is
attached to this report.
[ X]JYES [ ]NO

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 7 of 14



Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

ATTACHMENT C

ANNUAL REGIONAL TRAUMA SYSTEM PLAN AFFIDAVIT

The RAC shall document an annual review of regional EMS/trauma system plan. (§ Rule
157.123: Essential Criteria Defined. A.12)

RAC NAME: Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council has completed an annual review and/or
revision of the RAC’s regional trauma system plan with a documented date of and ratified by

approval from member organizations on October 26, 2021.

Each essential component of the Plan has a revision date of:

COMPONENT

DATE

Access to the System

August 30, 2021

Communication

August 30, 2021

Medical Oversight

August 30, 2021

Pre-hospital Triage Criteria

August 30, 2021

Diversion Policies

August 30, 2021

Bypass Protocols

August 30, 2021

Regional Medical Control

August 30, 2021

Facility Triage Criteria

August 30, 2021

Inter-hospital Transfers

August 30, 2021

Designation of Trauma Facilities, Planning for

August 30, 2021

Performance Improvement

August 30, 2021

Regional Trauma Treatment Protocols

August 30, 2021

Regional Helicopter Activation Protocols

August 30, 2021

Injury Prevention

August 30, 2021

Entire Plan

August 30, 2021

Is a current copy of the RAC’s regional trauma system plan available for review on the RAC’s

web site?
[ X1IYES [ INO

If NO, has one has been attached with this report?
[ JYES [ INO

A page summarizing revisions/additions made to the regional trauma system plan this contract

reporting year is attached to this report.
[ X] [X INO

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 8 of 14




Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

ATTACHMENT D
ANNUAL PARTICIPATION REPORT

DESIGNATED HOSPITALS

Laredo Medical Center

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 9 of 14



Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

ATTACHMENT E
ANNUAL PARTICIPATION REPORT

HOSPITALS SEEKING DESIGNATION

N/A

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 10 of 14




Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

ATTACHMENT F
ANNUAL PARTICIPATION REPORT

EMS PROVIDERS

Angel Care Ambulance Service

BronzeStar Ambulance Service

City of Laredo Fire/EMS

Priority EMS

Skyline EMS

Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS

Zapata County Fire/EMS

Victorious Care Ambulance Service

Laredo Lifeline

Lalitas Ambulance Care

United Med Care Ambulance

Texas Superior Ambulance

Medpoint Ambulance

Villa Ambulance Service

Primary Ambulance

Digni Care

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 11 of 14



Regional Advisory Council
(RAC)
Annual Report

ATTACHMENT G
ANNUAL PARTICIPATION REPORT

RECOGNIZED FIRST RESPONDER ORGANIZATIONS

City of Laredo Fire/EMS

Zapata County Fire/EMS

Angel Care

Skyline EMS

RAC Chair Date Signed

(Rev. 08/2018) Page 12 of 14




Regional Advisory Council

(RAC)

Annual Report

ATTACHMENT H

ANNUAL PARTICIPATION REPORT

Stakeholders that would include at a minimum participation on regional/local committees for the
development/maturation of the regional systems.

Angelica Perez NPM LMC
Dr. Satbir Chhina NMD LMC
Patricia Diaz NICU Director LMC
Lisa Y. Gonzalez NICU Program Manager DHL
Lilliana Limas Neonatal Director DHL
Dr. Roberto Villegas Neonatal Medical Director DHL

Stacey Lopez

Maternal Program Manager

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Guadalupe P. Cisneros

Director

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Dr. David Benavides

Maternal Medical Director

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Maria Santillan

Maternal Program Manager

Laredo Medical Center

Leticia Murillo

Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Maria Uribe

Director Women'’s Services

Laredo Medical Center

Dr. George Trivette

Maternal Medical Director

Laredo Medical Center

Vanessa Serna

Trauma Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Alma Hernandez

Trauma Registrar

Laredo Medical Center

Jose Gonzalez

Trauma Registrar

Laredo Medical Center

Letisia Colon

Trauma Coordinator

Doctors Hospital

Cristina Paez, BSN, RN

Chest Pain Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Chantel E. Molina, DNP, RN

Stroke Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Vanessa Serna, BSN, RN

Trauma Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Vanessa Gonzalez, BSN, RN

ED Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Corissa Nino, BSN, RN

ED Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Ernesto Hernandez, MSN, RN

ED Director

Laredo Medical Center

(Rev. 08/2018)

Page 13 of 14



Regional Advisory Council

(RAC)

Annual Report

Juanita Fernandez, BSN, RN

ICU Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Rosie Tamez, BSN, RN

Chest Pain Coordinator

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Angie Avila, RN

Stroke Coordinator

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Letisia Colon, BSN, RN

Trauma Coordinator

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Chantel E. Molina, DNP, RN

Stroke Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Cristina Paez, BSN, RN

Chest Pain Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Vanessa Serna, BSN, RN

Trauma Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Vanessa Gonzalez, BSN, RN

ED Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Corissa Nino, BSN, RN

ED Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Ernesto Hernandez, MSN, RN

ED Director

Laredo Medical Center

Juanita Fernandez, BSN, RN

ICU Clinical Coordinator

Laredo Medical Center

Rosie Tamez, BSN, RN

Chest Pain Coordinator

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Angie Avila, RN

Stroke Coordinator

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Letisia Colon, BSN, RN

Trauma Coordinator

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Rosa Rodriguez, RN

ED Manager

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Peter Gonzalez

Laredo Lifeline EMS

RAC Chair

(Rev. 08/2018)

Date Signed

Page 14 of 14



ITEM 26-08 (TAB 7)



B

Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council
Trauma Service Area “T”

BYLAWS

Amended and Board Approved Effective:



1.01.

2.01.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
ON TRAUMA, TRAUMA SERVICE AREAT, INC.

ARTICLE |
AUTHORITY

This Board shall be named the Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma. The
Board shall be created by the Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma
Area T, Inc., to act in a governance capacity. Formation and governance of this Board
shall be in accordance with and pursuant to provisions stipulated within the Tobacco
Endowment Fund, established by Texas Government Code 403.106; Health and Safety
Code 780.003; and funds appropriated during the 83" Legislative Session.

ARTICLE Il
MISSION, DESIGNATED JURISDICITON AND PURPOSE
Mission

The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council (SFRAC) is an organization of local citizens
representing health care entities within a specified Trauma Service Area (TSA). The
SFRAC is an organization chartered by the Texas Department of State Health Services,
Division of Regulatory Services, Office of EMS/Trauma Systems Coordination; to develop,
implement, improve monitor and report on regional emergency services and trauma system
networks for TSA “T. The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council shall encourage and
support a comprehensive continuum of quality health care to be provided within the Trauma
Service Area “T”, without regard to race, color, creed, gender, national origin, or ability to

pay.

Designated Jurisdiction

2.03. The following counties have been designated by the State of Texas or approved upon

petition to the Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council with subsequent approval by the
State of Texas to be included in TSA “T”: Jim Hogg, Webb, and Zapata.

Purpose

2.04. This corporation is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes within

the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or

corresponding provision hereafter in effect (“The Code”). More specifically, the corporation

is organized and shall be operated exclusively to carry out one or more of the following

purposes:

(a) Encourage the development of a comprehensive trauma care system based on
accepted standards of care,



3.01.

(b)
()

(d)

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Solicit participation from all health care entities located within its designated trauma
service area,

Encourage trauma service area unity in providing trauma care services, promote
improvement of all medical facilities, EMS Services, First Responder Organizations,
and Educational Institutions that provide EMS Training, and

Cooperate with all entities, agencies, and organizations in the establishment of a
proficient and effective system of care for injured patients.

ARTICLE Ill
MEMBERSHIP

Membership Composition and Qualifications/Roles

Membership qualifications require that the member entity conduct and possess licensure
to provide service within the Trauma Service Area (TSA) “T" and be:

(@)
(b)
()
(d)

(e)

(e)

Hospital: An individual(s) designated by a hospital located in TSA T. Hospital
members shall not be eligible to receive EMS County Assistance Funds.

EMS Service Provider: An individual(s) designated by an EMS land or air Service
provider located in TSA T.

First Responder Organization: An individual(s) designated by a First Responder
Organization Service located in TSA T.

Education: An individual(s) designated by an Education Institution involved in trauma
service training located in TSA T. Educational entity members shall not be eligible for
RAC related funding with the exception of Local Planning Grant (LPG)Funds as
appropriated by DSHS either through the RACs as an allocation to the region or
directly through competitive grants let by DSHS.

Member At-Large: At-Large Members shall:

(i) Participate in listening and communicating issues, needs,

and interests among Directors of the Board in order to identify potential

problems and opportunities, to work effectively toward common goals, and

develop objectives and action plans for selected projects.

(ii) Provide the Board of Directors with information based on

experience, expenrtise, or special insight as a subject matter expent, if

level of knowledge is suitable and applicable to the needs of the Board

as deemed appropriate by a majority of the Board. A member At-Large may

be exempt from paying membership dues. Additionally, a Member At-Large

is not eligible to receive any program funding. Members at Large shall not be
counted in constituting a quorum and shall not have voting power.

Ex-Officio Member: An ex-officio Board member is a member who does not

have membership with an organization but is able to serve on the board.

This member serving as ex-officio is able to do so because of another

position the person holds, such as a state employee or representative.

Unlike other board members, the ex-officio board member has the



3.02.

3.03.

3.04.

3.05.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

privilege of partaking in some board activities, but this is not required. The ex-
officio member shall not be counted in constituting a quorum and shall not have
voting power. The ex-officio member may contribute to the Board’s business by
participating in item discussion and committee activities. Lastly, Ex-Officio
members are not eligible to receive any program funding.

1] Subject Matter Expert: The subject matter expert may provide expertise in
evaluating system(s) operations and processes. Identifying areas where
technical and strategic solutions would improve performance outcomes,
and contributing specialized knowledge. A Subject Matter Expert shall
be exempt from paying membership dues. Additionally, a Member At-Large
is not eligible to receive any program funding. Members at Large shall not
be counted in constituting a quorum and shall not have voting power.

Special Qualifications for Hospitals
Membership status for new hospitals shall be provisional for six (6) months.

Continued membership status for hospitals will be dependent on a commitment to trauma
care as demonstrated by trauma facility designation or involvement in the designation
process as prescribed in Texas Administrative Code, Title 25, Chapter 157, Rule §157.125
Requirements for Trauma Facility Designation.

Provisional Membership Status for New Members

If a new entity wishes to become a member of SFRAC, the applicant must submit an
application with the SFRAC within ten (10) days of their intent in applying for membership
or within the time necessary to be included on the agenda for the next most recent Board
meeting during which membership will be considered. The Secretary or Administrator shall
present the application for membership to the Board of Directors, which shall approve or
disapprove such application. After the Board’s approval of membership status, prorated
membership dues (as applicable) shall be submitted to the SFRAC within 30 days of Board
approval.

The Secretary or Administrator shall then notify the applicant of the action of the Board of
Directors. If membership is granted to the entity, then the said entity shall remain under
with-a provisional status until such time that the entity has served as a Member in Good
Standing for an entire fiscal year (September 15 through August 315!) or has served as a
Member in_Good Standing for a cumulative period of twelve consecutive months,

wh/chever comes f/rst Wmmwmmm@mm

Recogmtlon of an entlty WI|| not take effect untnl thelr appllcatlon is on file, dues paid, and
application for membership is approved by the Board of Directors.

Dues



3.06.

3.07.

3.08.

3.09.

3.10.

3.11.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Membership dues for hospitals is $1,950.00 (i.e., $1,500 / membership fee + $450 / hospital
Y% share of TETAF annual fee); EMS/HHA Service(s) dues is $750.00; First Responder
Organizations dues is $750.00; and educational institutions are exempt from membership
dues. Dues will be required to be paid in full upon a new fiscal year for both provisional and
current members. Dues are to be made payable to Seven Flags RAC by entity check or
money order. No cash or personal checks will be accepted. All dues paid to SFRAC are
non-refundable. Dues may be changed for any given projected fiscal year. Any change in
dues should be for one fiscal year at a time and would require approval by the Board of
Directors through a 2/3 vote of the members. Change in dues should be implemented at
the beginning of each fiscal year which runs September 15t through August 31!,

Prorated Dues for New Members

Prorated dues for new member entities will be determined by the number of months left
within the current fiscal year. Prorated dues will not cover subsequent fiscal years.

Participating Member in “Good Standing”

A member in “Good Standing” is defined as a member that meets all Active Participation
(i.e., meeting attendance) and Funding Requirements (i.e., payment of membership dues)
set forth within these By-Laws.

Membership Renewal Application

A membership application is required to be submitted to the SFRAC office at the start of
each fiscal year. All existing members must submit their application and dues at the
beginning of every fiscal year with their primary and three alternate representatives listed.
Recognition of a member entity will not take effect until their application is on file and dues
are paid with the SFRAC office.

An existing member in “Good Standing” that does not renew their membership four (4)
months after the fiscal year has begun (i.e., January) will result in the member's “Good
Standmg” status to be revoked and deemed as a member “Not in Good Standing”, for the

sta{usﬁtnaybe{;ubfee#eulosmg thelr pnvulege in recelvmg program grant funds durmg the
existing fiscal year. Under this rule, the SFRAC Board of Directors has the ultimate

authority to approve any exceptions and/or allowances.

Late Payment Fee for Membership Renewal

Payment of membership dues shall be made no later than October 31t of each new fiscal
year. After the October 315t due date, a late fee of $25 will be added to membership dues



3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

for every month that the membership dues are late up to four (4) months after the fiscal
year for all existing members.

Resignation

A member entity wishing to resign may do so by submitting in writing to the SFRAC
Secretary on official letterhead that the entity no longer wishes to participate in the SFRAC
and all its committees. A member entity resigning will remain in “Good Standing” if the
aforementioned is submitted. Dues paid to SFRAC remain non-refundable in any type of
resignation.

Reapplication

A member entity who resigns in “Good Standing” may reapply for membership. The
Secretary shall present all applications for membership to the Board of Directors, which
shall at its next regular meeting approve or disapprove such application. The Secretary
shall then notify the applicant of the action of the Board of Directors.

Member “Not in Good Standing”

A Member entity shall be deemed to be “Not in Good Standing” if a Member  entity
misses fifty percent (50%) of RAC Self-Assessment meetings during a given fiscal year or
within_a consecutive twelve month (12) period; misses two (2) consecutive scheduled
Board meetings; and/or if any of the Active Participation requirements (i.e., submittal of
membership documents, application and payment of dues) are not met. Members “Not in
Good Standing” as a result of failing to adhere to meeting participation criteria for both
Board of Directors and RAC Self-Assessment meetings, will not be considered eligible
for fund allocations during the proceeding (i.e., following) fiscal year.

A member entity who is discontinued from receiving funding for disciplinary action levied
against a participating hospital, EMS Service, First Responder Organization by the Texas
Department of State Health Services may re-apply for Membership. The Secretary shall
present all applications for membership to the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall then
notify the applicant of the action of the Board of Directors.

Removal of Member
A member of the SFRAC may be removed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, at
any regular or special meetings for participation and compliance violations.

Active Participation

Active Participation as a member within the SFRAC is defined as meeting all compliance
requirements listed below under Section 3.19, (a) — (h).

SFRAC Events

5



3.18.

3.19.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

SFRAC events shall be coordinated by any of the SFRAC Permanent Committees of the
organization or by the Board itself. A minimum of one event attended by the member entity
is required. Each participating entity must sign in during the event to be accounted as
having participated.

Types of Events

(a) Trauma Healthcare Related Events

(b) Injury Prevention Related Events

(c) Stroke Related Events

(d) Cardiac/STEMI Related Events

(e) Maternal Events

(f) Neonatal/NICU Related Events

(g) Other events as assigned or formed by the board (e.g., Fund Raisers)

Compliance Requirements for Participating Members

Each Hospital, EMS Service, and First Responder Organization which has been
designated membership must meet all the following categorical participation requirements
with the SFRAC in order to become eligible for state grant funding. Hence, “Participating”
as a member is defined as having met with all the requirements listed in this section, 3.19(a)
through 3.19(h).

(a) State Trauma Registry: All participating hospitals and EMS entities must upload to the
State Trauma Registry via electronic medium as required by Texas Administrative
Code, Title 25, Chapter 103, Injury Prevention and Control, Rule §103.13, “Who Shall
Report,” and Rule §103.19, “Electronic Reporting”. Reporting must be done in
accordance with registry submission guidelines. Compliance will be determined after
verification is obtained through the State Trauma Registry Office.

(b) Licensure Compliance: All participating hospitals must be licensed general hospital
and designated trauma facility or considered in “Active pursuit” of designation by the
Texas Department of State Health Services. Verification of licensure compliance will be
obtained through the Texas Department of State Health Services. Disciplinary Action
levied against a participating hospital by the Texas Department of State Health Services
is considered prima facie evidence for the Seven Flags RAC to discontinue funding for
the rest of the current fiscal year (Reapplication for membership will be required at the
end of the current fiscal year for reconsideration for the following year). This is not
limited to letters of reprimand, administrative penalties, probation and/or fines
sanctioned by the Texas Department of State Health Services for not maintaining
compliance or violation of licensure statutes/rules.

(c) Licensure Compliance: All participating First Responder Agencies and EMS Services
must be licensed EMS Providers by the Texas Department of State Health Services.
Verification of licensure compliance will be obtained through the Texas Department of
State Health Services. Disciplinary Action levied against a participating EMS Service
by the Texas Department of State Health Services is considered prima facie evidence
for the Seven Flags RAC to discontinue funding for the rest of the current fiscal year

6




“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

(Reapplication for membership will be required at the end of the current fiscal year for
reconsideration for the following year). This is not limited to letters of reprimand,
administrative penalties, probation and/or fines sanctioned by the Texas Department of
State Health Services for not maintaining licensure compliance or violation of licensure
statutes/rules.

(d)_Licensure Compliance: All participating hospitals must be registered with the

Texas Department of State Health Services. Verification of registration compliance will
be obtained through the Texas Department of State Health Services. Disciplinary Action
levied against a participating hospital by the Texas Department of State Health Services
is considered prima facie evidence for the Seven Flags RAC to discontinue funding for
the rest of the current fiscal year (Reapplication for membership will be required at the
end of the current fiscal year for reconsideration for the following year). This is not limited
to letters of reprimand, administrative penalties, probation and/or fines sanctioned by
the Texas Department of State Health Services for not maintaining licensure compliance
or violation of licensure statues/rules.

(e) Submission of a needs assessment: All participating hospitals and EMS entities must

(f)

submit to the RAC Administrator a needs assessment at the beginning of each fiscal
year in the form provided by the SFRAC.

Affidavit Acknowledging Utilization of RAC Regional Protocols Reqgarding Patient
Destination and Transport: All participating EMS Services must file a copy of the
signed affidavit form at the beginning of every fiscal year with the Seven Flags RAC
office. All EMS Services are required to comply with the aforementioned in accordance
with Texas Administrative Code, Title 25, Chapter 157, Rule §157.130(d)(2)(B) and
Rule §157 131(d)(2)(B) “demonstrate utlllzatlon of the Fteglonal Adwsory Council

i d 3 c r which they

operate.

(g) Attendance: All Educational Institutions participating in the Seven Flags RAC (TSAT)

may attend all Committee and Board of Directors meetings during a fiscal year.
Educational Institutions are not subject to the participation requirements herein. Note:
State funds are only available for participating hospitals, EMS Services, and First
Responder Organizations in accordance with Texas Administrative Code, Title 25,
Chapter 157, Rule §157.130 & §157.131.

Participation is applicable to workshops (i.e., Self-Assessment Program Workshops)
and SFRAC Standing Committee meetings that are directly related to SFRAC TSA T
business. Participating hospitals, EMS/HAA services and first responder
agencies/organizations are expected to attend each Board and Committee meeting.
Should a Board director not be able to attend a Board or Committee meeting in a given
month, it is the responsibility of that Board director to ensure compliance by assigning
that at least one of the three possible alternates for that Board Director representing a
given entity be present for the meeting to duly represent the absent Board director and
the respective participating entity/organization. Members who consecutively miss two

7



3.20.

4.01.

4.02.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

reqularly scheduled Board meetings ef-any-meetings—{i-e—Gommittees-or-Board) will

be considered a Member Not in Good Standing and, therefore, will not be eligible for
funding for the following fiscal year. Similarly, members who miss attending fifty percent
(50%) of workshop meeting related to the completion and implementation of the RAC
Self-Assessment in_any given fiscal year or within a consecutive twelve month (12)
period will also _be considered “Members Not in Good Standing” with the organization
and therefore, not be eligible for funding in the following fiscal year.

(h) Payment of Membership Dues: All members must be current in the payment of
their membership dues. Members who remain delinquent in the payment of SFRAC
dues by the 13! of March of any given fiscal year will be considered a Member Not in
Good Standing and, therefore, will not be eligible for funding for the following fiscal
year.

Non-participating Membership Status and Participation

An entity may participate in the SFRAC as a Non-Participating member and still meet its
obligations under the Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 25, Part |, Chapter 157,
Subchapter B, Rule 157.11(c)(7)(S-T), which states, “The applicant shall provide an
attestation or provide documentation (to the DSHS) that it and/or its management staff will
or continues to participate in the local regional advisory council. Non-participating
members are expected to attend the same number of SFRAC Board meetings as
Participating Members throughout the modified quarterly yearly schedule (i.e., September,
January, April, and August). If a non-participating member misses two consecutive SFRAC
meetings, the entity will be deemed non-compliant as a non-participating member. Non-
participating members may not be represented on the Board; may not receive grant funds
allocated by the DSHS; may not vote on matters of the Board, (but may participate in
discussion); may patrticipate in SFRAC sponsored events; and may receive material or
items associated with a given implementation of a special or required project deemed to
be so by DSHS and/or the SFRAC (e.g., Wristbands).

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“Board”, when used in relation to any power or duty requiring collective action, means
“Board of Directors”.

The business and affairs of the Board and all powers vested shall be exercised by or under
the authority of the Board of Directors, subject to limitations imposed by the Act, the Articles
of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. No single entity shall place undue influence on the
governance of the Corporation.

Minimum Number of Directors and Board Officers



4.03.

4.04.

4.05.

4.06.

4.07.

4.08.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

The number of Board Officers of this Regional Advisory Council (RAC) shall be at least
four (4): Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer, all of whom must be
residents of the State of Texas. The number of Board Directors may be increased or
decreased from time to time by amendment of these Bylaws, but no decrease shall be the
effect of shortening the term of any incumbent directors.

Board Officer and Director Appointments

Board Officers shall be approved for appointment by the Active Members of the SFRAC
through nomination. Each EMS ard-Hespital-entity Board Director will be entitled to name
three (3) alternate individuals, and each will have the authority to cast a vote in the absence
of the designated Board Director. Each Director position representing a given entity will
count as one (1) vote, regardless of the number of alternates. Appointed alternates may
cast one (1) vote only for a given Board Director representing a given entity. Trauma
designated facilities will each appoint a Board Director. Hospitals may have up to six (6)
chosen alternates. Each member EMS Provider and First Responder Organization shall
also appoint a Board Director. Similarly, Board Officer votes count for the given entity they
represent. Appointment of Directors shall be made by the given
agencies/entities/organizations that the Director is representing while serving on the Board.
The SFRAC Board shall recognize and approve the slate of Officers to serve on the Board
for each new term each-new-fisealyear at the first meeting of eash alternating fiscal years
held in September, (if necessary) Nominations fdentification of appeinrted members to
servce as officers by given participating SFRAC agency or entity will be done using the

SFRAC's “Membership-Application Nomination Form”.

Each ef-these appointed Director with the SFRAC shall be an individual who is an
employee or agent of a Hospital facility, EMS provider or First Responder Organization and
who has been designated by that Hospital, EMS provider or First Responder Organization
to serve on the SFRAC Board as a-candidatefor Director.

Director Term of Office

The term in office of each director shall be for one (1) year and may continue to serve
consecutive terms or until his or her successor is appointed by the CEO/Owner of the entity
being represented.

Entities with multiple facilities may designate one person to act as Director for all its entities
and such person shall have one vote for each facility at meetings of the Directors of the
Corporation.

Director Vacancy

The Board of Directors may declare vacant the office of a Director in any of the following
cases: (a) if he/she is adjudged incompetent by an order of the coun; (b) if he/she is
convicted of a felony; or (c) if within sixty (60) days after notice of election, he/she does not
accept the office either in writing or by attending a meeting of the Board of Directors.



4.09.

4.10.

4.11.

412,

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall exist in the case of happening of any of these
events: (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any Director, or (b) the authorized number
of Directors is increased.

In the event that the office of the Chair becomes vacant, the Vice Chair will succeed the
Chair and hold office for the unexpired Chair’s term. After completion of the vacant Chair’s
term, the Board shall elect a Chairman. If the office of the Vice-Chair, Secretary, or
Treasurer, becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise, the
Board shall elect a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired term and until his
successor is elected after expiration of the term. Vacancies may be filled by any of the
remaining Directors. Each Officer so elected shall hold office until his successor is elected
at a regular or special meeting of the Board.

Director Resignation
Any Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairman or the
Secretary of the Board. Any resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of that notice,

or any time specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of
that resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Director Removal
Any Director failing to attend 75% of the scheduled Board of Directors meetings within the
contract year may be removed from office by vote of a majority of the Board. If a hospital
director is removed, the hospital shall be requested to appoint a new director to finish the
current term. If an EMS Director is removed, the EMS Provider, which employs that
director, shall be requested to appoint a new director to finish the current term.
Any Director may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board,

at any regular or special meeting, provided however, that the removal shall be without
prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person removed.

Voting by Alternate

An Alternate representative may vote on behalf of a Board member. The presence of an
Alternate meets attendance requirements.

Board of Directors Compensation
Board members shall not receive compensation for their services as Officers or Directors

of the Board.

ARTICLE V

10



5.01

5.02.

5.03.

5.04.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

OFFICERS

There shall be the following Officers of the Board of Directors elected by the Board of
Directors annually on alternating terms and each shall serve until the successor of such
officer is elected.

(a) Chairman
(b) Vice-Chairman
(c) Secretary
(d) Treasurer

An officer who does not comply with assigned responsibilities may be relieved of office by
a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Nominations

Nominations of Officers to the Board of Directors shall be made during the August Board
of Directors meeting of the SFRAC. Individuals may nominate candidates by the following
methods: (1) In writing during the meeting at the indicated time of the agenda (must fill out
the SFRAC nomination form), (3) In writing to the SFRAC Secretary via e-mail, fax or U.S.
Mail on the SFRAC nomination form. The nomination and selection of officers will be
placed as an agenda item in the August SFRAC Board of Directors meeting. Candidates
accepting the nominations will then be placed on the agenda in the September SFRAC
Board of Directors meeting for approval and installation of officers.

Elections

Election of new officers will be held in August with the new officers assuming office during
the September meeting of the SFRAC Board of Directors.

(@) To be eligible for an officer position as Vice-Chair, Treasurer or Secretary, the
individual must be a SFRAC Board General Assembly member, which includes those
as officers, directors, or alternates, Board Director affiliated with a member entity that
is currently participating and is in good standing with the Seven Flags RAC for one
(1) year prior to being nominated. The individual must reside in the State of Texas
and has not been found in violation resulting in a felony.

(b) To be eligible as Chairman of the Board an individual must meet the same eligibility
criteria as Vice-Chair, Treasurer and Secretary, with the only exception that the
individual may not necessarily be a Board Assembly member Direstor at the time of
nomination. Additionally, the nominated Chairman need not necessarily be a member
of or affiliated with a SFRAC member entity.

(¢) Candidates may run for only one office at a time.

(d) To facilitate transition of administration, officers will be installed at the next regular
Board of Directors meeting following the nomination.

11



5.05.

5.06.

5.07.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Officers’ Term of Office

The term in office of each Board Officer shall be for two (2) years until his or her successor
is nominated and elected by the Board of Directors during a regular meeting or a special
meeting of the Board of Directors held for that purpose, in which a quorum of the Board of
Directors is present. Officers may be nominated and re-elected for multiple consecutive
terms. Election of officers will be rotated every two years eash-year with one-half of the
officer positions replaced. Elections for the Vice-Chairman and Secretary positions will be
held in the odd years (i.e., fiscal year). Elections for the Chairman and Treasurer will be
held in the even years (i.e., fiscal year).

Installation of Board Offices

Board of Directors Officers will be installed at the September regular Board
of Directors meeting following the election.

Removal and Resignation of Officer

Any Officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority of the Board of
Directors, at any regular or special meeting, provided however, that the removal shall be
with prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person removed. Any officer may resign
at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the Chairman, or the Secretary
of the Corporation. Any resignation shall take effect at the date or receipt of that notice, or
any time specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of that
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any Board of Directors Officer failing
to attend seventy-five percent (75%) of the Board of Directors Meetings in the current fiscal
year may be removed from office by vote of a majority of the Board of Directors.

Duties of the Chairman

Unless duties are otherwise performed by Administrator or Executive Director of the

SFRAC, the Chairman shall:

(a) Preside over all meetings of the Executive Board, Board of Directors and at any
Special Meeting of the Corporation.

(b) Make interim appointments as needed with the approval of the Board of Directors.

(c) Sign all contracts after approval of the Board of Directors. The chairman may assign
the SFRAC Administrator to sign program contracts on his behalf with approval from
the SFRAC Board.

(d) Call a special or emergency meeting when necessary.

(e) Will act as the registered agent of the corporation and must file with the Texas
Secretary of State’s Office in a timely manner.

(f)  Sign all legal/non-profit corporation documents for the SFRAC.

(g) Must be placed on the authorized signature card at the financial institution where the
Seven Flags RAC conducts their banking affairs. After the completion of the elected
term, resignation, or removal of the Chairman, he or she must tender over his or her

12



5.08.

5.09.

(h)

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

letter of completion of term or resignation and must be sent to the financial institution
immediately where the RAC conducts its’ business affairs to serve as tangible
evidence that he or she is no longer affiliated with the Seven Flags RAC.

Travel as required to meet contractual obligations and/or stakeholder meetings (local,
statewide, or national) to accurately represent the Seven Flags RAC at the GETAC
and TETAF meetings.

Duties of the Vice Chairman

Unless duties are otherwise performed by the Administrator or Executive Director of the
SFRAC, the Vice-Chairman shall perform the duties of the Chairman and perform such
duties as are assigned by the Chairman:

(@)

P e Ry L
(=)

[eNN¢]
N s S

(e)

Must be placed on the authorized signature card at the financial institution where the
Seven Flags RAC conducts their banking affairs. After the completion of the elected
term, resignation, or removal of the Chairman, he or she must tender over his or her
letter of completion of term or resignation and must be sent to the financial institution
immediately where the RAC conducts its’ business affairs to serve as tangible
evidence that he or she is no longer affiliated with the Seven Flags RAC.

Oversee the revision of the Trauma Systems Plan.

May oversee the revision of the Bylaws of the Corporation.

May require travel to GETAC and DSHS Chair meetings throughout the state as
needed or when the SFRAC Chairman is unable to attend, to represent the SFRAC
Chairperson at mandatory and non-mandatory meetings.

Shall conduct SFRAC Board meetings in the absence of the Chairperson.

Duties of the Secretary

Unless duties are otherwise performed by the Administrator or Executive Director of the
SFRAC, the Secretary of the Board of Directors or a person designated by the Secretary
shall:

(a)
(b)

Call the roll (unless otherwise assigned or directed by the Chairman).

Determine if a quorum is present at every meeting if needed (unless otherwise
assigned or directed by the Chairman).

May record the minutes of all proceedings of the Executive Board, Board of Directors
Special and/or Emergency meetings.

May handle the correspondence of the organization.

May send a Board of Directors listing to each member.

May present the minutes to each member at the current meeting.

Shall receive all written Alternates by members prior to every meeting.

Must be placed on the authorized signature card at the financial institution where the
Seven Flags RAC conducts their banking affairs. After the completion of the elected
term, resignation or removal of the Secretary, he/she must tender over his/her letter
of completion of term or resignation and must be sent to the financial institution
immediately where the SFRAC conducts its’ business affairs to serve as tangible
evidence that he or she is no longer affiliated with the Seven Flags RAC.

13



“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Duties of the Treasurer

5.10. Unless duties are otherwise performed by the Administrator or Executive Director of the

5.11.

6.01.

SFRAC, the Treasurer shall:

(a) May prepare and present the financial report(s) for each Board of Directors meeting.

(b) May review receipts and disbursements of all funds.

(c) May assist with tax reporting requirements as prescribed by the United States Internal
Revenue Service and the State of Texas Comptroller’s Office.

(d) Must be placed on the authorized signature card at the financial institution where the
Seven Flags RAC conducts their banking affairs. After the completion of the elected
term, resignation, or removal of the Treasurer, he/she must tender over his/her letter
of completion of term or resignation and must be sent to the financial institution
immediately where the SFRAC conducts its’ business affairs to serve as tangible
evidence that he or she is no longer affiliated with the Seven Flags RAC.

(e) May prepare and submit financial reports as required by all contract(s) with DSHS, as
prescribed by the United States Internal Revenue Service regarding quarterly or
annual filings with the State of Texas Comptroller’s Office, and any other contracted
entities with Seven Flags RAC in accordance with deadline dates.

Officer Salaries

The Officers shall serve without salary in accordance with the Non-Profit Act of the State
of Texas.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS

Frequency
Meetings of the Board of Directors shall take place a minimum of four (4) times a year).
The date and place of the next meeting will be determined at the end of each meeting.
Meetings of the Board will be held throughout the year on the 30" day of each of the

following months: September, January, April and August. If the 30t falls on a weekend,
then the meeting would be held on the Friday preceding the weekend.

6.02. Committee Meetings shall take place a minimum of four (4) times a year as part of each

6.03.

Board meeting. Committees may meet independently throughout the course of the year
as needed.

Meetings of the Board of Directors and/or Committee(s) shall take place as called upon by

the Board of Directors Chairman or designated Administrator representing the Seven Flags
Regional Advisory Council for the Trauma Service Area - T.

14



6.04.

6.02.

6.03.

6.04.

6.05.

6.06.

6.07.

6.08.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

The Administrator for the Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council designated to coordinate
and call upon its members and officers to convene Committee and/or Board of Director
meetings on behalf of the Chairman, Officers, and General Membership.

Parliamentary Authority

Robert’s Rules of Order (revised) shall be the guide to parliamentary procedure for all
Seven Flags RAC meetings.

Quorum

A quorum for conducting the business of the Board of Directors and General Membership
Meetings shall not be less than one half (1/2) of the Members present.

In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Members present may adjourn the meeting.
At the discretion of the members present informational items on the agenda may be
presented and discussed. However, action items shall not be presented or discussed until
the next re-scheduled meeting or the next regular meeting.

Notice of time and place of a re-scheduled meeting that was adjourned need not be given
to absent Members if the re-scheduled meeting will be at the next regular meeting of the
Board and the time and place has been previously provided.

Special Meetings

A Special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be called by the Chairman, or if he/she is
absent, is unable too, or refuses to act; a special meeting shall be called by the Vice-
Chairman or by any two Officers of the Board.

Written notice of the time, place, and purpose of special meetings of the Board of Directors,
shall be delivered to each Member personally, via mail, e-mail, fax, or by phone at least
five (5) days before the meeting. If the address of a Board Member is not shown on the
records and is not readily ascertainable, notice shall be addressed to him in the city or
place in which meetings of the Board are regularly held. Notice of the time and place of
holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent Board members if the time and
place are fixed at the meeting adjourned.

Voting by Board of Directors, Chairman, and Board Officers

Each Hospital, EMS Service, and First Responder Organization which has designated
membership shall be entitled to one (1) vote at any meeting of the Board of Directors,
except the Provisional Members who shall not vote until completion of their first fiscal year.
The Chairman of the Board shall be entitled to cast a vote only in situations where a vote
is needed to break a tie in voting among the members.

15



6.09.

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Every action or decision made by a majority of the Directors present at any meeting duly
held at which a quorum is present is the action of the Board of Directors. Each Director
who is present at a meeting will be deemed to have assented to any action taken at such
meeting unless his/her dissent to the action is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or
unless he/she shall file his/her written dissent thereto with the Secretary of the meeting or
shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation on the
next business day after such meeting.

Action by Consent of Board Without Meeting

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors under any provision
of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act may be taken without a meeting, if all members of
the Board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written
consent shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. Such action by
written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Board.
Any certificate or other document filed under any provision of the Act which relates to action
so taken shall state the action was taken by the unanimous written consent of the Board to
so act, and such statement shall be prima facie evidence of such authority.

Electronic Voting

Board Members may cast their vote electronically via the official e-mail address of the
member entity at a given time. Electronic voting may be used when a member is
unavailable to attend a meeting where a vote is required. In the event the SFRAC is faced
with a time-sensitive action item(s), electronic voting shall remain the preferred method of
casting a vote in lieu of a special meeting. In this instance, a majority vote is required in
order to take action on any item(s) that may impact or directly affect the business of the
SFRAC.

Meetings via Telephone or Other Means of Virtual Communication

Subject to the provisions for notice required by these Bylaws and the Act for notice of
meetings, Board members may participate in and hold a meeting by means of conference
telephone or other communications equipment, including but not limited to virtual platforms
such as Zoom, Teams, Go To Meeting, etc., by which all persons participating in the
meeting can hear each other. Participation in the meeting held by conference telephone or
other communications equipment shall constitute presence in person at the meeting,
except when a person participates in a meeting for the sole purpose of protesting to the
transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or
concerned.

Conduct of Meetings
At every meeting of the Board, the Chairman of the Board, or in his/her absence, the Vice-
Chairman or in his/her absence, the Secretary or in his/her absence, the Treasure or in
his/her absence of such designation, a Chairman chosen by majority of the Board Members

16



6.15

6.14.

7.01.

7.02.

7.03.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

present shall preside as Chairman. In the case the Secretary shall be absent from any
meeting, the Chairman may appoint any person to act as Secretary of the meeting.
Similarly, in the case that the Secretary is acting as interim Chair, the interim
Chair/Secretary may appoint any person from the Directors to act as interim Secretary of
the meeting.

Adjournment

In the absence of a majority of the Board members that are needed to establish a quorum,
adjournment of the meeting may be called by the majority of the members present.

Notice of Adjourned Meeting

Notice of time and place of a re-scheduled meeting that was adjourned need not be given
to absent Board Member if the re-scheduled meeting will be at the next regular meeting of
the Board and the time and place has been previously provided.

ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors, by an affirmative vote and as needed, may appoint Select
committees (i.e., Ad-Hoc) or working groups, which shall have and may exercise such
powers as shall be conferred or authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Examples of Select (i.e., Ad-Hoc) Committees

(@) Bylaw Select Committee
(b) Finance Select Committee
(c) Trauma Systems Plan Select Committee

Participation in SFRAC Committees by each entity is required. Committee Chairmen and
Vice-chairmen will receive a roll call for attendance for each respective committee they
serve on and shall be counted in the assessment of member’s status of participation in the
organization as it pertains to providing hospitals with participation letters and reporting
to the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) and or surveying entity in the
process of designation/redesignation, as needed.

Standing (i.e., Permanent) Committees
Standing (i.e., permanent) committees of the SFRAC are as follows: EMS/Pre-hospital

Committee, Trauma/lnjury Prevention Committee, Maternal Committee, Stroke
Committee, Neonatal/NICU and Cardiac/STEMI Committee.

17



7.04.

7.05.

7.06.

8.01.

8.02.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Committees shall be composed of individuals from the participating member entities and
members of the Board.

Committee Appointments

Appointments to a committee shall be made on a yearly basis and commencing on the
fiscal year. The committees are responsible for providing input, guidance, and strategy as
it relates to the current issues affecting Trauma Service Area “T”. A majority of any such
committee may determine its action and fix the time and place of its meeting. Any
committee that does not comply with their assigned responsibility shall be subject to the
oversight of the Executive Board.

Committee Responsibilities

The Board of Directors by affirmative vote shall have the authority at any time to change
the responsibilities, composition, or dissolve any committee. All committee proposed action
or activities affecting the SFRAC Corporation and reports given on Committee activities
and data shall be brought before the Board of Directors for review and approval.

ARTICLE VIl

FISCAL POLICIES

The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council will follow the US Generally Accepted
Accounting Standards. At each Board of Directors meeting, the Board will review the
financial statements presented. The SFRAC-T will retain the financial reports in the
Administrative Agency office, if applicable, or with the Treasurer of the Board.

Approval of Payables

Requests for the issuance of checks for all accounts payables shall be initiated by the RAC
Administrator and approved (in signature) by two of the four SFRAC Board officers. The
RAC Administrator shall make available to the Treasurer all transactions occurring within
given months throughout the year. Should a Board Member, SFRAC Member or office
personnel incur an unexpected cost, a reimbursement request form must be completed
along with invoice and/or receipts attached. The Treasurer will review and approve
payment if the amount does not equal or exceed $2000.00, if so the incurred cost will need
approval by the Board. The approval requirement in this section shall not apply to EMS
County funding, as EMS County funding remains pass-through in nature.

Authority and Execution of Instruments

18



8.03.

8.04.

8.05.

8.06.

8.07.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

The Board, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may authorize any officer or
officers, agent or agents, or the SFRAC administrator to enter into any contract or execute
and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such
authority may be general or confined to specific instances and, unless so authorized, no
officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any
contract or engagement or in pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniary for any
purpose or to any amount, unless authorized by the Board of Directors.

Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board, or otherwise required by law, formal
contracts of the Corporation, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages and other
evidence of indebtedness of the Corporation and other corporate instruments or
documents, and certificates shares of stock owned by the Corporation, shall be executed,
signed or endorsed by the Chairman or Vice- Chairman, and may have the corporate seal
affixed thereto.

Endorsement without Countersignature

Endorsement for deposit to the credit of the Corporation in any of its duly authorized
depositories may be made without countersignature by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman,
Treasurer, or by any other officer or agent of the Corporation to whom the Board, by
resolution shall have delegated such power, or by hand-stamped impression in the name
of the Corporation.

Deposits

All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the
Corporation with such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of
Directors may select or as may be selected by any officer or officers, agent or agents of
the Corporation to whom such power may be delegated by the Board of Directors.

Check Endorsement

All checks must be signed by at least two (2) of the four (4) Officers of the Board of the
Corporation. Each of the four (4) Board Officers shall be designated as signatory of checks
for the Corporation. A signatory cannot sign on a check made out under the same name
as a signing signatory. Checks equaling or exceeding two thousand dollars shall be signed
by the aforementioned and must be approved by the Board of Directors at the earliest
convenience unless there is a direct impact that will affect funding or is in the best interest
of the Seven Flags RAC to proceed with the issuance of such a check to conclude SFRAC
business or meet specific contract requirements/obligations. The same will be allowed if
there are extenuating circumstances that will directly affect or impact the Corporation
financially by not issuing of a check or payment on behalf of the Seven Flags RAC and
would not be feasible to have a formal meeting to obtain such an approval by the Board of
Directors. In such cases, the Chairman, Treasurer, or Secretary of the Corporation may
give verbal consent to issue out the check(s) after it is determined that by not issuing out
the said check(s), it would not be in the best interests of the Seven Flags RAC. This section

19



8.08.

8.09.

8.10.

8.11.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

shall not apply to EMS County Funding distributions as they remain pass through funding
for EMS Providers that have meet eligible requirements.

Books of Account

The Corporation shall keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of its properties
and business transactions, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts,
disbursements, gains, losses, capital surplus and shares. Any surplus, including earned
surplus, paid in surplus and surplus arising from a reduction of stated capital, shall be
classified according to source and shown in a separate account.

Annual Operating Budget

The SFRAC Regional Administrator will develop the operating budget for each year and
present it to the Board of Directors for approval. The budget will be adopted when
approved by the Directors.

The operating budget shall be composed of the following funding sources: Entity Dues
(Hospitals, EMS Services, First Responder Organizations) Public & Private Donations,
Fund Raising Income, and State Grant Funding (i.e., EMS RAC Fund, EMS County
Assistance Fund and System Development Fund, as well as any other fund/award made
available by DSHS in any given year or time period.)

Budget Allocations

The operating budget shall have the following designated percentages of funds through
grant contracts, dues and donations received by the Seven Flags RAC:

(a) Funds from the “EMS/RAC” Contract portion awarded by the Texas Department of
State Health Services will be used for administrative services (i.e., Contract for
Administrative services with STDC) or programmatic purposes, depending on the
needs and funding structure at the time.

(b) Exceptional ltem (E.l.) funds appropriated through the 88" Texas Legislature under
House Bill 1 and awarded by DSHS to RACs in Texas, reside under the EMS/RAC
contract but should be tracked separately.

(c) Up to thirty-five percent (35%) from the System Development Fund Contract awarded
by the Texas Department of State Health Services may be used for administrative
purposes. Percentage shall not exceed 35% as per contractual requirements.

(d) No less than sixty-five percent (65%) of the System Development Fund Contract
awarded by the Texas Department of State Health Services is to be used for
programmatic purposes.

(e) Entity dues collected may be used for administrative or programmatic purposes as
deemed appropriate by the Board for each fiscal year.

() Public/ private donations received as well as proceeds generated through fund raising
activities are to be used as determined by the SFREAC Board for administrative and

20



8.12.

8.13.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

or programmatic purposes unless otherwise restricted/required by donor and/or
grantor.

EMS County Assistance Grant Program

Pursuant to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 25, Part I, Chapter 157, Rule
157.130(c)(2)(A) and 157.131(c)(2)(A), all “EMS County Assistance ” contracted funds will
remain a 100% pass thru and shall not be subject to any administrative fee(s) unless
previously authorized by all the eligible EMS entity(s) in writing and approved by all eligible
EMS entity(s) within that specific county. To further clarify, this does not prohibit a single
or several eligible EMS entity(s) from voluntarily returning a specific amount and/or
percentage of their entity’s funds within a fiscal year. If an eligible entity(s) wishes to
voluntarily return funds to the RAC for its operations, then, the entity(s) can do so by
completing the SFRAC “Voluntarily Return of Funds Form.”

All eligible EMS entities shall receive an equal share of the total county funds awarded
within the “EMS County RAC” contact(s) through the Texas Department of State Health
Services. Example: If county is awarded the sum of $10,000.00 and there are five (5)
eligible EMS entities, then, each EMS Service shall receive $2,000.00.f an entity chooses
to relinquish their share of EMS County Assistance Funds, then the total of the funds
returned shall be incorporated equally among the remaining entities on the eligible recipient
list within the county of which the forfeiting entity officially resides. Entities must meet all
participation requirements as provided in 2.23 herein in order to become eligible to receive
the aforementioned funding. Eligible entities shall be notified of their funding status at a
regular meeting of the General Membership. All entities receiving funding must complete
a SFRAC expenditure report (i.e., reimbursement request form) and attach all supporting
invoices and/or receipts for their expenditures within the specific contract period as set
forth by the Texas Department of State Health Services EMS County RAC contract(s).

Funds may be redistributed to other member_providers within the Trauma Service Area
under basically three conditions: 1) a provider entity has notified the SFRAC in writing that
they wish return the funds initially allocated to them; 2) a provider entity is no longer in
service and has notified the SFRAC in writing that they have no use for the funds; and 3)
a provider entity fails to meet the reimbursement submittal deadline and other Member in
Good Standing provisions prescribed in the SFRAC By-Laws. In such cases, the SFRAC
may be asked by DSHS to develop and submit a redistribution plan to be approved by
DSHS. Funds which are redistributed must revert back to eligible EMS entities within an
affected county, only. However, if only a single member which represents a given county
becomes ineligible to receive EMS County Assistance Funds during a current and active
grant cycle, and there are no other member entities within that given county to have the
funds in question re-allocated, re-distributed or re-assigned to them, those funds then
revert back to the state (i.e., DSHS).

All reimbursement request forms, and financial supporting documentation shall be
submitted no later than April 31st.

System Development Grant Program

21



8.14

8.15

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

System Development Program Funds are primarily earmarked for EMS entities and
hospitals within the SFRAC. If an entity, be it an EMS entity or hospital, fails to submit a
timely reimbursement form for expenses incurred for purchases made under the respective
programs on the deadline being May 31%! of the fiscal year, then the funds from the entity(s)
in question is subject to being lost and spent based on how the SFRAC Board decides as
a whole. It would be up to the SFRAC Board to designate the spending of the funds for
the benefit of all the eligible SFRAC members in good standing. The Board may choose
to decide based on the assessments submitted by each entity or may choose to make
another choice based on other criteria, provided the expenditure(s) is/are in line with
allowed DSHS program purchases and costs guidelines. In such case, the administrator
may be appointed to assist in the expenditure of the reallocated funds.

EMS/RAC Program

Before the introduction of the Exceptional item (E.I.) funds appropriated under H.B. 1, the
SFRAC organization utilized the funds to procure administrative services under contract
with the South Texas Development Council (STDC). The SFRAC will continue to utilize
funds awarded under the EMS/RAC portion of the DSHS/SFRAC contract at a rate
determined by the SFRAC Board. During the period of October 2023, the DSHS amended
the EMS/RAC contract with all RAC in Texas to include an across the board increase of
funds identified as Exceptional ltem (E.l.) funds. Each RAC in Texas, including SFRAC
received and additional one hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) as an addition
amount to the existing regular EMS/RAC contract funds. The SFRAC will keep the two
funding sources separate, as currently required by DSHS. Therefore, non-E.|l. funds as
awarded under EMS/RAC contracts will continue to be used for the procurement of
administrative services for the SFRAC. And funds designated as E.l. will be utilized in
accordance with the guidelines and requirements of the DSHS, which includes to keep
pace with increasing RAC responsibilities imposed by statutory requirements. Some
examples as provided in the EMS/RAC contract expressly related to E.l., projects/funding
may include RAC approved projects, incorporating and implementing functional RAC
committees, working on system plans, and handling coordination with increased number
of trauma facilities due to Texas’ increasing population.

When funds become available for allocating to SFRAC member entities in Good Standing
for local projects, entities must submit a reimbursement for similar to the one used for EMS
County Assistance and System Development together with the respective supporting
documentation. If an entity wishes to purchase equipment with EMS RAC, Exceptional Item
funds, approval must be obtained. The process would entail the entity submitting their
intent to purchase equipment along with the description of the equipment to the SFRAC.
The SFRAC in turn will submit the request to DSHS for review and approval.

All reimbursement request forms and respective financial supportive documentation must
be submitted to the SFRAC by June 30%.

22



8.16.

8.17.

8.18.

8.19.

8.20.

8.21.

8.22.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

If an entity, be it an EMS entity or hospital, fails to submit a timely reimbursement form for
expenses incurred for purchases made under the respective programs on the deadline
June 30¢ of the given fiscal year, then the funds from the entity(s) in question is subject to
being lost and spent based on how the SFRAC Board decides as a whole. It would be up
to the SFRAC Board to designate the spending of the funds for the benefit of all the eligible
SFRAC members in good standing. The Board may choose to decide based on the
assessments submitted by each entity or may choose to make another choice based on
other criteria, provided the expenditure(s) is/are in line with allowed DSHS program
purchases and costs guidelines. In such case, the administrator may be appointed to
assist in the expenditure of the reallocated funds.

Receipt of Gifts and Contributions

The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift,
bequest, or devise for the general purposes or for any specified purpose of the Corporation
with no personal gain or profit.

The Corporation may not indemnify any person who was, is, or is threatened to be named
defendant or respondent in a proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, arbitrative,
or investigative.

The Corporation may undergo different types of audits according to the amount of funds
received state and federally.

A check request form must be completed for all accounts payable and approved by the
Administrator and Treasurer. Should a Board Member incur unexpected costs, a
reimbursement request form must be completed along with invoice and/or receipts
attached. The Treasurer will review and approve payment.

Annual Report

An annual report will be completed by the SFRAC Administrator for approval from the
Board of Directors and then submitted to the Texas Department of State Health Services.

Fiscal Year
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall coincide with the State of Texas fiscal year
commencing on September 13t of every year and ending on August 31%! of the following
year.
Travel By Board Members
Travel incurred by SFRAC Board members shall be in accordance with the State of Texas
approved rates and shall be accounted for and submitted for reimbursement or advance

on forms approved by the SFRAC. Costs associated with air travel shall be an allowable

23



9.01.

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

expense whenever travel time and cost to a particular location using ground travel exceed
the time and cost and practicality of air travel. Such air travel, however, shall be limited to
coach fares. First class travel rates are not considered an allowable expense and not
reimbursable.

Travel related costs for lodging and per diem shall conform to rates published in U.S.
General Services Administration at gsa.gov. Mileage paid for use of a personal vehicle for
out-of-town trips related to SFRAC business shall not exceed a rate per mile that is
approved and deemed by the State of Texas as authorized at the time of travel. Use of a
company, county or city vehicle in making out of town trips shall not qualify as a
reimbursable mileage expense.

ARTICLE IX
ADMINISTRATOR

The Regional Administrator will serve as the administrator of the Corporation. The Regional
Administrator will be responsible for the management and administrative operation of the
organization, including the performance and discharge of powers, duties and functions
necessary to carry out the policies of the Executive Board. The Regional Administrator
reports to the Chairman and serves at the will of the General Membership. The Regional
Administrator will establish management procedures and delegate responsibilities
applicable to the office management. He or she is charged with the administration of
personnel procedures and will be the final authority concerning personnel consistent with
Executive Board policy. The Regional Administrator shall also perform other duties
appointed by the General Membership and may be removed by a majority General
Membership through an official vote as well as being able to show just cause for such
removal. The Regional Administrator shall be compensated for his/her employment duties
with the Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council. Salary is to be determined by the
Executive Board and approved by the General Membership.

ARTICLE X
CORPORATE RECORDS, REPORTS, AND SEAL

Minutes to Meetings

10.01 The Corporation shall keep at its principal office, or such place as the Board may order, a

book of minutes of all meetings of its Board, with the time and place of holding, whether
regular or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, and the names
of those present.

ARTICLE XI

24



11.01

13.01

“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

DISSOLUTION CLAUSE

Upon the dissolution of the organization, the Directors shall, after paying or making
provision for payment of all of the liabilities of the organization, dispose of all of the assets
of the organization exclusively for the purposes of the organization in such manner, or to
such organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable,
educational, religious, or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt
organization or organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law)
as the Directors shall determine. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of
by a State District Court of the county in which the principal office of the organizations, as
said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such
purposes.

ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS
Adoption, Amendment, Repeal of Bylaws by the Board of Directors

12.01 Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed and must be adopted by the Board
of Directors. An annual review of this document is required prior to the start of every fiscal
year. Two meetings will be held prior to or during committee meetings prior to the Board of
Directors meeting to review the Amended Bylaws. Potential amendments may require
research by the By-Laws Committee. Once the said research and review is completed,
then corrections or revisions offered by the Committee will be added to the final draft of the
document. The final draft will be distributed to the Board of Directors to review and
comments. This document shall be distributed fifteen (15) days prior to the next Board of
Directors meeting for approval, either electronically or in hard copy. Final approval of the
precedent amendments is subject to a majority vote by the Board of Directors at any
subsequent regular or special Board meeting.

ARTICLE Xl
AMENDED BYLAWS
These Bylaws (hereinafter, referred to as the “Bylaws”) of the Seven Flags Regional
Advisory Council on Trauma (SFRAC), Trauma Service Area T, a non-profit corporation
(hereinafter referred to as the (“Corporation”), are adopted effective 16 day of December

2014, to supersede the previous bylaws and amendments of the Corporation by action of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

25



“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Adopted by the General Membership on the 16" day of August 2006.
Amended by the General Membership on the 9™ day of November 2006.
Amended by the General Membership on the 17" day of October 2007.
Amended by the General Membership on the 22" day of August 2012.
Amended by the General Membership on the 215t day of August 2014.
Amended by the General Membership on the 16" day of December 2014.
Amended by the General Membership on the 18" day of August 2015.
Amended by the General Membership on the 23 day of February 2016.
Amended by the General Membership on the 315t day of March 2017.
Amended by the General Membership on the 12" day of February 2018.
Amended by the General Membership on the 30" day of May 2019.
Amended by the General Membership on the 26th day of October 2021.
Amended by the General Membership on the 30" day of September 2023.
Amended and Approved by the Board of Directors on the 30" day of August 2024.

Amended and Approved by the Board of Directors on the 24" day of September 2025.

Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Services Area T.

Attest:
Chairman

Attest:
Secretary

26



ITEM 26-09 (TAB 8)



swm \SEVEN FLAGS Ay m

Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council
Trauma Service Area “T”

BYLAWS

Amended and Board Approved Effective:
September 27, 2025



“Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Service Area T Bylaws”

Adopted by the General Membership on the 16" day of August 2006.
Amended by the General Membership on the 9t day of November 2006.
Amended by the General Membership on the 17" day of October 2007.
Amended by the General Membership on the 22" day of August 2012.
Amended by the General Membership on the 215 day of August 2014.
Amended by the General Membership on the 16" day of December 2014.
Amended by the General Membership on the 18" day of August 2015.
Amended by the General Membership on the 23 day of February 2016.
Amended by the General Membership on the 315t day of March 2017.
Amended by the General Membership on the 12t day of February 2018.
Amended by the General Membership on the 30t day of May 2019.
Amended by the General Membership on the 26th day of October 2021.
Amended by the General Membership on the 30" day of September 2023.
Amended and Approved by the Board of Directors on the 30t day of August 2024.

Amended and Approved by the Board of Directors on the 24t day of September 2025.

Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma, Trauma Services Area T.

Attest:
Chairman

Attest:
Secretary

26



ITEM 26-11 (TAB 9)



:ssa1ppy Buiiiew

:ssalppy new3

:xeq |

| :aAnejussaiday ajewayy

S1I9qUINN auoyd

:ssalppy Buew

:SSa.ppy flewsy

xeq |

SIS

||.(| -ﬁ._WWMMMI —— l..-l’.ﬁ. ‘199 “ 1300

:sJaquiny auoyd

“m>_~|2m_wmmznm~_ .2«53.(

“mmm;vu<|m:_=as_

:$S2JppY l1ew3

1xeq :sabed

9210

N2

|

:sJaquInp auoyd

omp AL o] mY qprouny i ik

“0>=Wu:0mﬂ.-nwm 0~&E0ﬁ—<
~ :ssaippy Buiew

WO ﬁ&d? Q\PN uqqo_:wéwc

:SSa1ppYy lews

580 - Jpf (256) x4 | uabed | TEOL -1S¢ (1)) ne0 §BI-LLb [256)] 0om0

sJequinpN auoyd

95 47

00lh

T oML AL Vo)
Oh0AL XL op™7]

UM&_ ) o.ﬂsoC\UQ.| -.de;

Y FW w5 otk

IOV 8y} uo Jad14Q 10
iojoauiq se uoneziuebip
ay) Bupuasaiday uosiagd

:ssa.ppy Bupey |
:ssaippy [easAyd

wo) .00465 V.11 224210 qwy XL\

:SS94ppYy j1ews

920Z Ad wuog uonedjddy Jvy diysiaquiapy SW3I
«L,y E3Y 90IAIBG BWINRI ]
j1ouno?d Aiosiapy |euoibay sbejq uanag

gimmw

5300 -} \Q\u A‘wa.b :xed _ 999 -LLb A\Rru 190140 ‘sJoqwnN auoyd
| bz A% Q ) Q\um..\m\ 119149 10 03D 4O 3weN

o2 :N xmd MNN\ Ouid\awﬁw 117 ) h :uoneziueBiQ jo aweN

o (INRId 3SVITd)



ITEM 26-12 (TAB 10)



Texas EMS Wristband

The Texas EMS/EMTF Patient Wristband project is a stakeholder-driven solution for two distinct but
inter-related challenges in the Texas Trauma/Emergency healthcare system. It consists of a single
color band with both barcode and human readable 6 slot, alpha-numeric characters, including 0-9,
A-Z, but excludes the letters |, S, and O, because they can be confused with the numbers one, five
and zero. The goal for the Texas EMS/EMTF wristband (“Wristband”) program is to place a
wristband on all EMS patients that are transported, or in cases of disaster, to place the wristband
for patients needing to be tracked, regardless of transport.

The genesis of the wristband program started in the GETAC Disaster committee where it was
identified the difficulty tracking patients in disasters as early as 2005 after hurricanes Katrina and
Rita. Multiple tech solutions have emerged over the years, but none are ideal. The Texas
EMS/EMTF wristband provides a low-tech, straightforward way to assign a unique number to the
patient, which then gives tech systems a starting place that is easy to consume and to cross-
reference to other systems. Incidents like Hurricanes Rita, ke, Harvey, Imelda and others, along
with mass-casualty incidents like active shootings at Sutherland Springs, Santa Fe, El Paso would
benefit from the wristband, in conjunction with other technical systems like WebEOC or Pulsara,
especially when there are multiple public safety agencies involved in transports to multiple
hospitals.

The second challenge identified relates to day to day longitudinal connection of patient records
across disparate electronic medical records systems when patients are transported by EMS and
admitted to Emergency Departments and hospitals. This is compounded when the patient is
transferred from the initial facility to a tertiary facility, which occurs frequently in much of Texas.
While patient matching algorithms and platforms have emerged to attempt to solve this, they
require extensive IT integration and additional expense across each entity that desires to be
connected and none are 100% effective, requiring a manual effort to match patient records. . A
unique Patient ID number on the wristband provides an easy, low-tech way to connect disparate
records systems. The number must be straightforward yet built to allow millions of unique
identifying combinations. It is scannable using a QR code or bar code and is easy to enter manually
so that it can be entered in both the EMS agency record and the hospital record, which assists in
aligning patient records for continuity of care.

Current TX EMS Wristband

2.27 in

"X A00000008641

\7 ‘-} Toxas Wristband — - - - . I
L2 AN AR SECHEREES CHEH FAS I e o >

Variable Data

Draft of “NexGen” version 2 of TX EMS Wristband

DONOTCUTREMOVE  Texas EMS Wristband | /7211157 [Taamoosno | 4 [ Temmmems)

(am

§

Specifications on page 2



Texas EMS Wristband

Specifications

Unigue ID Number:
e Each band will start with ‘TX’ if used by a Texas based EMS/ Hospital facility
e Next will be the vendor initial (Z or P)
e Followed by a 6-digit number (Does not include ‘I’ ‘O’ or ‘'S’ & no dash or space)

Benefits/Advantages:

*  Supports the Texas EMS Wristband program allowing all EMS transported patients to
receive a band

* Integrates a Triage component making it readily accessible & available for rapid & instinctive
use

e Compatible with traditional and contemporary triage methodologies — START & SALT

* Allows EMS agencies to meet Requirements for an EMS Providers License - TAC
157.11(k),(7),13):



DECEASED
|N;‘£D|ATE

~ DELAYED
MiINIMAL

s [l

(T355009500e 0t

WO EONOY o

—— 1N
Q&ﬁ?:&_&e

mnm

7 15 LR AAv




ITEM 26-13 (TAB 11)



ITEM 26-11-a. (TAB 11)



(szoz/0e/80)
Bunaay

pieog

1€301 /05£$ 'leg
/08 :pred/osL$

00£'1$ =

00Z$ s34 a1e)
YTAd B E€TAD
+00S'T$ 15934
diyssaquiay

{parsap
|n4) asueINqUYy 20113dNS SEXD |

(pa1sap AlIng) 211 ‘@uayn opasel

(paisap Alind) pareniu) diysiaquis i)
a1e7) aauejnquy sexrje]

(paisapn
Ajnd) opase Jo |endsoy $10330Q

AlIng) uswyedaq an4 opase jo

993Mm (pa1s3A Aling)
ST ‘391A13G aduenquy Jels azuosg

{paisap
AjInd) 3cuenquuiy ase) Azeutd

> {parsap
Aling) 921 ‘saueinquiy ase3 [98uy|

1
4

pled/ang JaquinN
unowy pEVe]




-1eeA (east) Buwoyjoy ey Joj Buipun) Jo}
84 10U || '210}310y} ‘pue Butpuels PooD Ut toN
1OQUISI B POIBPISUOD &q (W Jeak [eosly ueaib Aue
4O y21BW 40 1 Y1 AQSenp JvHIS Jo WwewAed
8y} Ul Juenbuljep ulewWe oYM S1eqUIel ‘SeNp

{A33u3 Sunedidied-uoN e se paulor)
Iduenquy Aemaled)

(vz0z ‘0 J2qu3das :paulor)
saue|nguiy 8Je3 PIN pauUN

(5207 ‘T Aoy
paisap Alind/yz0z ‘0¢ 1dy :pauior)
2sue(nquy aJed Iudig

{paisap Ain3)
931IA9S BURINQUY )|

(parsap Ajjng
SW3/2414 Awuno) eyedez|

o
S
o
a
@
~N

£

(PaisaA AlInd) ‘SN BunANS

(paisap Ajing
SIN/aJ14 1933UNj0A AJUNOD QaM

(paisan
Ajnd) 8suenqUIY 3180 SNOIOIA

{pa1sap
AlInd) au) ‘@auenquiy Julodpay

GAaM|(paisap AInd) 133ua) [ed1paiy opase]

. % e 5 ‘!

Aewwng diysIaqUIIN JVY4S SZAS




{9z0z/82/80)
Jupasy

pieog

9202/L0

(9zoz/9}| (9z0zZ/S}} (92

preogoN| pseog on| pseog on

0Z/0€/v)
Sunaapy
pJeog

(9zoz/€)
Auizaoiy
pleog oN

(9z0z/2)
Junasy
pJeog oN

(9zoz/62/%)
Bunsapy
pieog

05.$ '(eg/0$
‘pled/osL$
$994
diyssaquiay
9ZAd

0S6°1$ 1e8/0$
:P1ed/0S6'tS
15994

diyssaquisin}

9TAd

s3)

qqam

(parsa Aind) SW3 Alold

999m

(pa1saA AnJ) J33ua) |edipaLN OpaJe]

0548

'1eg/0$ :pIed/
05£$ 5994
diyssaquisiy
9TAd

qq9Mm

(poasan
AlIng) 9sueInquy r0113dng sexa

0SL$ '1eg/0$
pred/0SLS
15994
diyssaquapy
9ZAd

qgam

(pa1san AjIng) 277 ‘aunjayn opasel

0SL$
‘1eq /0% :pied
/0528 15333
diysiaquisiy
9TAd

q99Mm

{P31sap Ajng) pareniu) diyssaquia )
ase) Iduejnquy seyiey

0S6°T$ "128/0$
pred/0s6't$
s394
diyssaquiay
9TAd

qqam

{paisap
Atng) opasen jo jeydsoy s10330Q

0S.$ "1eg/0$
'PIR4/0SLS
1$934
a_cmgvn:._o_z
9ZAd

qq3Mm

(paisap
AlInd) Juswuedaq aJi4 opaset yo A

0sL$

‘leg / 00°0$
‘Pled/0SL$
15894
diyssaquapy
9ZA3

q90m

(parsan Alna)
271 ‘@91maS BduRNGUIY Jels azuolg

0sL$ /1eg

0$ 'P1ed/0SL$
1$334
diyssagquapw
S9ZAd

qgam

(paisap
Aing) 001 ‘s3ueinquiy ase] jaBuy

05¢$ '1e8/03
‘P1ed/05L$
18934
diysiaquiaiy
9ZAd

q9aMm

(paisap
Ajjng) asueinquiy 31e3 Aewid

(szoz/zt)| (szoz/tv)|  (szoz/ot)

(szoz/vz/6)

Bunasiy [FECTT

pseog oN| pieogon| pieogon

pieog

pied/ang
unowy

JaquinN
F9yd

pausodsg
aeq/pred
aleq

panwqng
WAWSSISSY
spaaN

paniwqng
uAepYY
SW3

panwqns|
uonesjddy

Aunosy

awen Anu3

VvSL

Aewwns diysiaquiaiy IvY4S 9ZAS




«seek [eos)y Buwolioy eyy so) Buipun) o) ejqibie

©q 10U || ‘0J0j010Y1 ‘pUe Butpuelg PooY ul loN|

JOQWO € POISPISUOD 8q ((W Jeek eos!j ueAb Aue

O YdJB 4O .1 8yl £Q S8NP OvYLS Jo uswied

| syl ul b uIRWeI OYM W ‘senp
diyssequiew Jey) o uewded oy} ur Jueund aq Isnut

sisquew iy 'SBng dIqSIequIey 7o TUSEAES (€)

992M|{A1u3 Sunedisiued-uop e se pautor)
aouenquy Aemares)

05L$ a93m (5202 ‘vz +equiaidag|

‘|eg /0$ ‘pled :paulor) aaug|nquIy sexa),
J05£8 s394
diyssaquiay

q9°2m (5207 ‘08 1aquiaidag paisap
AlIn3/vz0Z ‘0€ +3qwardas :pauror)
auRnquIYy 3JeD pa paNuUN

q39m (sz0z ‘T Ao
Pa1s3A AlIN/pZ0Z ‘O€ 1dY :paulor)
asuejnquy ased waig

993M (pa1sap Alind)

‘ieg /0$ :pled 301136 3auenquiy e|IA
\OWN% 5334
diyssaquapy
9TAd

0545 'les ejedez (parseA Ajng)

/0$ :pred/osLs$ SW3/3J14 Auno) eledez
15994

diysiaquain

| 2o wir (Pa1saA Alfnd) ‘SIN3 dUIANS

qq3m (pa1san Ajnd)
SIN3/3413 J333UNJOA AlUno) qQqaMm

/0$ 'Ped/0SLS
15334
diysiaquapy
9ZAd

05£$ "1eg| 993Mm {paisan

/08 :p1ed/0sL$ Alin4) duengLuY 3187 SNOLIOIIA
15994
diyszaquiaiy
9ZAd

0s¢$ e q93m (paisan

/0$ :Pred/osL$ Ang) "au] ‘asueinquiy Julodpaiy
15984
dyssaquiapy
9TAd

]

wiwing diysiaqusy JvY4S 9ZAd

—







ITEM 26-11-c. (TAB 11)



(s)aanuiw oo (S)4noy Wd 00:2T SZ/ET/S
(s)anuiw o0 (s)4noy g Wd 00:/ S2/€T/S

(s)aanuiw oo (s)Anoy €9 Wd 00:T ¥2/22/¢L
(s)aanuiw o0 (s)anoy WV 00:1T v2Z/62/L

wuw:yy
AA/pp/ww
Anjdey ya
juaned awiy

juawadanosdwiy 10y BEYNERET] juained AJjpoe4 3)a1 juanned
sanunjioddo Yoeqpod) bundasoe pue |eALlly
paynuspl tajsues] Ajoey jusaijed usamiag swlilL

wJeH

JO [9A37

s)a2jnuiw ST (S)IN0Y ST SabeIIAY
%0S Sanoy Z UIUIIMm



ITEM 26-14 (TAB 12)



% TEXAS

4 Health and Human
Services Jennifer A. Shuford, M.D., M.P.H.

Commissioner

Texas Department of State Health Services

September 8, 2025

Jorge Leal

Chief Executive Officer
Laredo Medical Center
1700 East Saunders Street
Laredo, Texas 78041

Dear Mr. Leal:

Your facility completed an application seeking Stroke Level III designation.
Your survey report and additional documents have been reviewed. The
Texas Department of State Health Services re-designates Laredo Medical
Center as a Primary (Level III) Stroke Facility in Trauma Service Area-T.
This state designation is valid for a two-year period. Your expiration date is
February 1, 2028.

Your hospital is commended for its commitment to quality care and the
commitment to achieve and maintain a Primary (Level III) designation.
Congratulations to you and your staff for the vital role the hospital provides
to your community.

For assistance regarding this matter, please contact Jorie Klein, MSN, MHA,
BSN, RN, Director, EMS/Trauma Systems Section, via email at
Jorie.Klein@dshs.texas.gov, or by phone at 512-535-8538.

Sincerely,

Timothy Stevenson, DVM, PhD
Deputy Commissioner

Consumer Protection Division

cc: Chantel Molina, RN, Stroke Program Manager
Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council

P.O. Box 149347 - Austin, Texas 78714-9347 - Phone: 888-963-7111 - TTY: 800-735-2989 - dshs.texas.gov



\ TEXAS

¥ Health and Human Texas Depar_tment of State
" Services Health Services

Certificate of Designation

hereby awarded to

Laredo Medical Center

asa

Primary (Level IIl) Stroke Facility

Laredo Medical Center meets the standards of care relating to the treatment of stroke
in Texas, actively advocates for stroke system development and works to improve the
availability and quality of stroke care as an active member of
Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council.

DATE EXPIRES: FEBRUARY 1, 2028

ot S0, 1 BT

Jorie Klein, MSN, MHA, BSN, RN Timothy Stevenson, DVM, PhD
DIRECTOR DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
EMS/TRAUMA SYSTEMS SECTION CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION

Jrrn Aaveman,







Communication: EMS Providers
Target Delivery: 9/8/2025
Audience: EMS Providers

Sent by: EMSTR
Subject: NEMSIS Critical Patch - Final Implementation

Dear Emergency Medical Services (EMS) user;

On 04/07/2025, the National EMS Information System (NEMSIS) released
critical patch 5 to replace the patient gender (ePatient.13) and provider
gender (dPersonnel.12) fields with biological sex. On 07/07/2025, Texas
Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Emergency Medical Services
and Trauma Registries (EMSTR) began accepting the new values and
directed all vendors to make it available to customers, as soon as possible.

At 12:00:01AM on 10/21/2025 Texas will make the final phase of the
transition by implementing NEMSIS critical patch 6. This will require the new
element, patient’s sex, is documented in every activation involving patient
contact or it will fail state and national transmission.

If you use the EMSTR Direct Entry system, the EMSTR platform will
automatically make the changes. The ePatient.25 will display in the same
location where you currently find the ePatient.13. Similarly, the
dPersonnel.40 (EMS Personnel’s Sex) will show in the Facilities General
Information Question Packages instead of the dPersonnel.12 variable that is
currently available.

Additionally, EMSTR recommends Patient Care Report (PCR) vendors to
submit a new demographic file to account for documentation of the
provider’s sex and remove the legacy field. If you have any questions,
please reach out to the EMSTR team at injury.web@dshs.texas.gov

Sincerely,

The EMSTR Team



